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We acknowledge the traditional owners of country throughout Canberra and the Capital Region, on whose land we play football.
We recognise their continuing connection to land, waters and culture, and pay our respects to their Elders past, present and emerging.
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Saying 2020 was a year like no other is an understatement. Our community showed how resilient
we are as we dealt with the challenges of bushfires and smoke, hailstorms and the COVID-19 virus
and what the resulting impacts had on our daily activities.

Despite these challenges and because we are a community that pulls together, we were fortunate to still be able to have football
competitions at all levels, in all forms and for all age groups, with restrictions that ensured the safety of all participants. It was the
combined efforts of everyone involved in our football community including our hard-working club volunteers and players and
parents that made the season a success in the trying circumstances. | also want to acknowledge and thank the Capital Football
staff, who began working remotely in March and despite the scaled back operations and reduced hours from April, still went
above and beyond to ensure a football season was successfully achieved.

Our Strategic Plan for 2020-23 was ready to launch just as the pandemic was surfacing, so was held back due to the uncertainty
and seriousness of how the COVID-19 pandemic would change us as an organisation and indeed as a sport. The decision in
March 2020 to suspend grassroots football activities was not confined to our region but was a decision made by Football Australia
in consultation with all Member Federations. We were united in our resolve to assist, protect and reduce infection or transmission
risks for the football and broader community.

While the Strategic Plan was not officially launched, the areas of focus and priorities guided the work and operations for Capital
Football in 2020. The Board continued to instil good governance and to make decisions in the best interest of football to get

us through 2020 but also to ensure we would be able to operate in future years. Our strong financial position and stewardship,
together with financial assistance from the Australian and ACT Governments allowed us to continue to operate (at a reduced level)
and decreased the forecast deficit.

With the "bad’ there was also ‘good’. The support from the ACT Government by not charging ground hire fees in 2020 not only
provided Capital Football but all member clubs with some much needed financial relief.

And while we needed to socially distance, in some respects we were more connected to each other than ever before by using
technology for communicating and for meetings, including the 2020 Annual General Meeting. Our referee and coach education
opportunities also increased by using technology with an increase in courses and participants.

Notwithstanding the shortened season and impacts to clubs, more than 85% of teams from 2019 participated in competitions in
2020 and we had a record breaking 170 adults sign up for Canberra Foot and Ankle Clinic (CFAC) Walking Football. I'm pleased
football was able to provide a sense of normality in an otherwise uncertain time.
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Capital Football has a strong record of achievement for championing women'’s football and women in football. History was made again with the appointment of the first
all-female referee team officiate a Capital Football NPLT Men'’s match. In the year where Australia was named co-host with New Zealand of the FIFA Women's World Cup
2023™, again I'm pleased Capital Football is a leader in developing and promoting women.

The restrictions on crowd numbers resulted in more fans tuning in to watch Capital Football’s NPL than ever before. With more than 125 matches broadcast, more than 2.51
million minutes of NPL footage was watched via live stream on our YouTube page, up by 64% on 2019.

Our vision is to be the most inclusive and respected sport in the region. We took further steps towards this as we launched the first dedicated football academy for people
with a disability. This would not have been possible without the generosity of the Canberra community, with more than $120,000 thanks to the hard work of Rotary and the
Capital Regional Muscular Dystrophy.

It's been a big year and despite the challenges we can all be proud of what we have achieved in the year that was. On behalf of the Board, | would like to acknowledge and
thank everyone who contributed to football in our region in 2020.

Fran Sankey
Chair
Capital Football
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While 2020 was a challenging year for football, it was a challenge that we overcame as a
community.

COVID-19 RESPONSE

Responding to the impacts that COVID-19 has had on our community, Capital Football implemented cost reduction measures
to protect the financial position of the sport, including adjustments to our workforce and application to government for support
packages.

Concurrently, the ACT Government announced that it would not charge ground hire fees to community sport clubs.

In June 2020, Capital Football confirmed an ability to deliver a “half season” from July to September 2020. Aligned with that,
Capital Football announced a reduction by 50% to the Capital Football player and referee registration fees. In doing this, Capital
Football chose to absorb the cost of preparation for the season, which commenced in October 2019, and continued throughout
the temporary suspension of football as we worked to support players, coaches, referees and clubs through isolated practices, to
the resumption of training and then the commencement of competitions.

The discounting of the Capital Football player and referee registration fees, waiving of fees by the ACT Government for field hire
and condensed season length presented the following financial relief to clubs in Capital Football competitions;

» The discounting to the Capital Football player and referee registration fees provided financial relief of $685K compared to the
full season fees.

» The provision of ACT Community Sports Grounds at no cost for the winter season represented a saving to the football
community of circa $800K.

» The reduced season length and number of matches at which referees officiated, resulted in clubs expending $192K less in
referee match fees this winter season.

» The $1.68M reduction in costs supported club financial positions and resulted in reduced fees to players, to promote football
and ensure the game remained accessible to all.
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IN THE FACE OF CHALLENGES, WE ACHIEVED SOME GREAT THINGS

Participation
Despite the impact of COVID-19, football’s participation rates remained strong, with 33,604 participants in Capital Football and Canberra United programs in 2020.

The presence of COVID-19 was going to have an impact on our ability to play football and attract and retain participants given the shortened winter season. It was however
extremely pleasing to see more than 14,500 people register to play in the 2020 winter competition.

Particularly pleasing is the participation of women and girls in football. While the total participation in football fell by 16%, female participation grew by 1%. This is a great base
for us to build on as we seek to achieve gender parity in participation rates over the coming years.

Also pleasing to see was the increase in Summer Football participation. Clubs became more active in delivering Summer Football competitions, with 12 competitions
delivered in 2020. This saw an increase in Summer Football participants by 5,171 players.

NPL Live Streaming
Even with a shortened winter football season, more fans tuned in to watch Capital Football’s National Premier Leagues than ever before.
More than 125 matches broadcasted by BarTV across our National Premier League Women's and Men'’s Tst grade, and Men'’s U23 competitions.

This saw over 2.51 million minutes of National Premier Leagues footage watched via live stream on Capital Football’s YouTube page during the 2020 season, up by 64% from
2019 (1.57 million minutes viewed).

Powerchair

Powerchair football is a modified version of soccer for electric wheelchair users, including persons with quadriplegia, multiple sclerosis, muscular dystrophy, cerebral palsy,
hand trauma, stroke, and other spinal cord injuries.

In 2017, Capital Football and Capital Region Muscular Dystrophy joined forces to form a local Powerchair football team, with monthly training sessions and come and try
days hosted twice a year. Since then, the team has grown to eight players who train once a week, using standard electric wheelchairs with modified bumpers (rather than the
purpose-built strike force sports chairs).

Thanks to the generous support of Rotary and Capital Region Muscular Dystrophy, who together raised $120,000, Canberra United’s Powerchair football team received new
strike force sports chairs in 2020.

The provision of the purpose-built sports chairs with ensure Canberra United’s Powerchair team to compete in the Australian Powerchair Football National Championship
competition, which features five Australian State teams as well as two teams from New Zealand.
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THANKYOU

| want to extend a sincere thanks for everyone'’s efforts to deliver football in 2020.

From the time football was suspended in March, to the resumption of isolated practice, non-contact training, contact training and matches, we saw an enormous amount of
effort put in by people across our game.

| would like to acknowledge the club committees who took on extra work and responsibilities communicating with their communities and preparing for and delivering a range
of activities as we moved through the staged return of football. The help provided as we developed the amended competition models, refund process and preparation of
COVID-Safe plans was significant and | am sure very much appreciated by the players who, because of that work, were able to get back on the park.

Our referees adapted to the interrupted preparation to the football season, engaged in online learning and trained in isolation in readiness to serve the game once it returned.

From March to July, we held an unprecedented number of meetings with our Board, Committees and Club Presidents. The extra time spent by volunteers to engage and
contribute to ensure football not only survived the challenges in front of it but overcame them was amazing.

Then as we approached the season’s end, all our clubs, players, referees and parents supported each other as we rescheduled matches for the Wagga City Wanderers,
Yoogali SC, and Giriffith FC due to the NSW Health recommendations. | would like to thank all the teams that accommodated a reschedule of their home matches to
Cootamundra to ensure the teams from Wagga and Giriffith were able to continue in the competitions.

This work was also reflected in our Futsal competitions, including those delivered by North Canberra Futsal. We thank all those involved in Capital Football and North
Canberra Futsal competitions for their efforts to deliver competitions in a Covid safe manner.

Finally,  would like to thank and acknowledge the staff at Capital Football. They showed the utmost commitment and professionalism when we closed the office and moved to
remote working, adjusted to part-time hours while football was postponed, then put in an enormous amount of effort over a short space of time to get the competitions up and
running again. | am extremely proud of the work they delivered and honoured to work beside them.
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LIFE MEMBERS &
HALL OF FAME
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Stephanie Quinn
Carmel Carters

Dennis McDermott
] Brown

Michael Milovanovic
Danny Moulis

LIFE MEMBERS » Peta Winzar » Johnlogue
» Clive MacKillop »  Geoff Ashurst
> Brian Golledge » Ross]ones » David Dillon
» Roger Grylls » Bob Mee » Rachel Harrigan
> Ron Harris » George Dobbin »  Ron Watkins
» RodJory b Paul Murphy » Arthur Huggins
> Halleslie » Gordon Dunster
» Gerry Martens b Nick Szego HALL OF FAME
» John McAvoy b Carlyle Thayer » George Campbell Jnr
> RayMcGregor » John Vander Lende > Stuart Devlin
» Con Poulos » Chris Conti » Graham Harrison
» Don Rushman » Ken Allen » Halleslie
> Bob Tomlinson > Hendrik Thijssens > Gerry Martens
» Cass Hampton > Alan Ward » Bob Mee
» JoeFusca b Carolyn Lamaro » lan Myerscough
» Ken Carter > Bill Simeonivic » John Davies
» Bill Van der Vlist » Niels Hummel » Joe Honeysett
> David Oner b Paul Whittingham > RodJory
» G.Carmichael b John Jenkins » Frank Maccarone
» Steve Doszpot > Walter Valeri » Dennis McDermott
»  Keith Tournier > | McMahon » Jim Hayes
» Heather Reid » LDean » Steven Hogg
» N »
» N »
»

Margaret Taylor
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Charles Perkins
Mike Black
George Campbell Snr
Harvey Grigor
Paul Murphy

Roy Thompson
Eric Lyons

Johnny Warren
Peter Stanfield
Judith Clarke
Graham Cooke
Ken Allen

Gordon Dunster
lvan Bulum

Harry Williams
Chris Conti

Julie Murray
Rhonda Parkin
Sebastian Giampaolo
Ante Juric

Theo Moulis
Donna O'Brien
Barry Rumble
Sacha Wainwright
Ned Zelic

Tom Exharos

Jim Roberts

Amy Wilson
Ben Wilson
Ross Yarnold
Katrina Neuss
John Herd
George Lemon
Allyson Flynn
Ben Williams
Gavin Martin
Marco Vrkic
Chris Blain

v VvV VvV VvV VvV VvV VvV VvV Vv v Vv

HALL OF FAME
INDUCTEE - ALLYSON
FLYNN

Long serving referee, Allyson Flynn was inducted
into the Capital Football Hall of Fame for her
outstanding contribution for football in the ACT and
surrounding region.
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Allyson has officiated at the Olympics, FIFA
Women's World Cup, AFC Champions League and
AFC Women's Asian Cup, and closer to home, more
than 50 A-League and Westfield W-League matches.

In addition to her on-field achievements, Allyson’s
contribution to the development of match officials in
the Canberra and surrounding region has been, and
continues to be, very important to her. She has
encouraged, supported, mentored, coached and
advocated for referees at a local, state and national
level throughout her career and beyond.

Allyson is an inspirational role model for all referees,
especially women. Her achievements, commitment
and dedication to her own career along with
supporting and developing grassroots referees,
through to her strong friendships built with her peers
at a national or international is un-paramount.

Her legacy is meaningful and will influence the next
generation of elite female officials for years to come.



PARTICIPATION

Football maintains its position as the largest pa
sport in the ACT and surrounding region, involvin
33,604 participants in 2020.

Capital Football continues to record the highest
percentage of females playing football in the country, a
female participation rose by 1% on 2019.
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82% MALE 78% MALE 47% MALE
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League
NPLT Men'’s
NPLT Men’s
NPL2 Men's
NPL2 Men’s
NPL Youth
NPL Youth
NPL Youth
NPL Youth

The 2020 NPL1 Men'’s 1st Grade competition saw a different format to previous
seasons due to the shortened season. The regular season consisted of one round,
with the top four and bottom four being split for Championship and Playoff series
respectively. Canberra Croatia FC, Gungahlin United FC, Belconnen United FC
and Tigers FC finished in the top four, qualifying for the Championship Series,
whilst Tuggeranong United FC, Canberra Olympic FC, Woden Weston FC and

Age Grade
1st

u23

1st

u23

uis

Uie

ui4

u13

Premiers

N/A due to COVID-19
N/A due to COVID -19
N/A due to COVID-19
N/A due to COVID-19
N/A due to COVID-19
N/A due to COVID -19
N/A due to COVID-19
N/A due to COVID-19

Monaro Panthers FC competed in the Playoff Series.

Champions

Canberra Croatia FC
Belconnen United FC
Wagga City Wanderers FC
Wagga City Wanderers FC
N/A due to COVID -19
N/A due to COVID-19
N/A due to COVID -19
N/A due to COVID -19

CAPITAL
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Championship Runners Up
Gungahlin United FC
Monaro Panthers FC

Yoogali SC

ANU FC

N/A due to COVID-19

N/A due to COVID-19

N/A due to COVID-19

N/A due to COVID-19

The “all-regional’ Grand Final went all the way to penalties, with Wagga City

Wanderers defeating Yoogali SC 5-4 on penalties, after the teams could not be

split after 120 minutes of football, finishing 2-2.
The 2020 Men's Charity Shield did not take place due to COVID-19.

Canberra Croatia FC and Gungahlin United FC finished first and second following

the completion of the Championship Series Round Robin and met in the
Grand Final, with Canberra Croatia FC coming away 3-1 winners, defeating the
defending Champions.

The 2020 NPL2 Men'’s Tst Grade competition saw Yoogali SC finish in first place

on the ladder with 21 points from eight matches, followed closely by Queanbeyan

City FC on 18 points. Wagga City Wanderers FC and Canberra White Eagles

rounded out the top four with 14 points each, Wagga City Wanderers FC claiming

third spot by virtue of goal difference. Yoogali SC confirmed their spot in the
Grand Final with a 3-2 extra time victory, whilst Wagga City Wanderers FC beat
Queanbeyan City FC 2-1in the other Semi Final, also in extra time.
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League

NPL Women'’s
NPLWomen's
NPL Women's
NPL Women'’s
NPL Women'’s

1st
Reserve
Utz
u1s
U13

Premiers

N/A due to COVID -19
N/A due to COVID -19
N/A due to COVID -19
N/A due to COVID -19
N/A due to COVID -19

Champions

Canberra Croatia FC
Belconnen United FC
Canberra United Academy
Belconnen United FC
Belconnen United FC

CAPITAL
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Championship Runners Up
Belconnen United FC
Woden Weston FC

Woden Weston FC

Woden Weston FC

Canberra Olympic FC

Canberra Croatia FC ended the 2020 NPL Women'’s season sitting in first on the ladder, with 24 points courtesy of a perfect 8 wins from 8 matches. Belconnen United
FC and Gungahlin United FC followed with 16 points each, with Belconnen United FC claiming second place with the greater goal difference. Canberra Olympic FC

rounded out the top four, only one point behind.

Canberra Croatia FC continued their run with a 4-1 victory over Canberra Olympic FC to book their place in the Grand Final. Belconnen United FC confirmed that
it would be a rematch of the 2019 Grand Final with a 4-1 victory over Gungahlin United FC in their semi final. Canberra Croatia FC rounded out a perfect season,

overturning the 2019 result to defeat Belconnen United FC 2-0, winning all ten competitive matches they played in 2020.

The 2020 Women's Charity Shield did not take place due to COVID-19.
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ACTEWAGL
JUNIOR LEAGUE &
MINIROOS

Capital Football would like to thank the ongoing support of
ActewAGL for yet another season of junior football. Capital
Football would also like to thank all of the Clubs, including club
committees, volunteers, players and their parents for all of their
hard work.

CAPITAL
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The 2020 ActewAGL Junior League and MiniRoos Season was a shorter season than
most. Despite this, we still had 222 teams compete across 26 competitions in the
U12-U18 age groups. In the UT0 and U11 MiniRoos age grades 186 teams competed
across 21 competitions. Across both ActewAGL Junior League and MiniRoos Capital
Football, there were a total of 13 girl’s only competitions, comprising of a total of
100 teams. 2020 saw a total of 1,043 ActewAGL Junior League fixtures and 860
MiniRoos fixtures played over 190 fields, including MiniRoos fields, across the 3
months of competition.

The 2020 ActewAGL Junior League season was purely around participation due to
the limited amount of footballing opportunities. The decision was made to maximise
the number of rounds played by all participants. There were also no premiers
awarded for the 2020 season, to further highlight the season as being about
participation.

Capital Football and the competitions team would also like to extend appreciation
to the Junior Standing Advisory Committee for their assistance in the multiple
meetings prior to the commencement of the football season. Your feedback and
assistance was highly welcomed throughout the 2020 season and we look forward
to working with the committee for the 2021 season.

SENIORLEAGUES

Capital Football would like to thank the Clubs, including club
committees, volunteers and players for all of their hard work
and sacrifices they may have had to make to ensure that we had
a season.

The 2021 Senior Leagues Season was a short season compared to previous years.
The decision was made to run all Senior Leagues competitions as participation only,

to play as many games as possible whilst we had the ability to do so. Therefore, for
the 2020 Senior Leagues competitions, there were no premiers, nor champions.
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Across the Senior Leagues Competitions, we saw a total of 173 teams, with a
breakdown in the table below:

Competition Team Numbers
State League Men's 56

Community League Men'’s 37

Masters League Men'’s 29

State League Women's 46

Masters League Women's 5

Capital Football and the competitions team would also like to extend a giant thanks
to the Community Leagues Standing Advisory Committee for their assistance in the
multiple meetings prior to the commencement of the football season. Your feedback
and assistance throughout the 2020 season was highly welcomed and we look
forward to working with the committee for the 2021 season.

SUMMER FOOTBALL

Summer Football was approached differently across the 2020/21 summer season, to
give clubs the option to run competitions themselves.

This decision gave clubs the option to extend their seasons, while also providing
them with ways to lessen financial impacts from COVID-19.

CAPITAL
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This new process saw a total of 11 clubs running a variety of competitions across the
Summer Football season. The clubs that nominated to run competitions were:
ANU FC

ANU Women's FC

Belnorth FC

Brindabella Blues FC

Canberra City SC

Monaro Panthers FC

Queanbeyan City SC

Tuggeranong United FC

West Canberra Wanderers FC

Weston Molonglo FC

Woden Valley SC

v

v v VvV VvV VvV VvV VvV vV v Vv

Capital Football provided support to these clubs across the Summer Football
season, from Play Football, SportsTG and from a disciplinary point of view, with the
hopes to grow this space and provide more support and resources for clubs.

Many of the competitions ran from October through until December 2020, with
some then recommencing in January following a Christmas break.
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It was another big year of Capital Football’s social futsal, with a total of 809 players competing in
115 teams during the 2019/20 Summer Futsal Season. Winter futsal did not run during 2020 due
to COVID-19. North and South Canberra Futsal again ran junior social competitions during the
2019/20 season.

Men'’s and Women'’s Futsal Premier League ran again in 2019/20. Boomerangs FS did the double

in the Men’s competition, finishing as Premiers before going on to win the Grand Final and be
crowned Champions. Golden Boot winner Matthew Corey scored 14 goals in just 12 games as part
of a strong North Canberra Untouchables team who only lost the Grand Final, 3-2. Canberra FC did
the double in the Women'’s Futsal Premier League, finishing as Premiers in the regular season before
defeating North Canberra Untouchables 3-0 in the Grand Final. Brittany Palombi from Canberra FC
took out the Women's Golden Boot award, scoring 17 goals across 12 round matches.

The Premier League competitions were also run at the end of 2020, with a downsized 6 team, 10
round competition completed on Thursday 17 December 2020. Boomerangs FS repeated their
success, finishing first again before taking out the Grand Final 3-2 over Timberwolves FC. Jayde
James-Ward claimed the Golden Boot with 17 goals in 10 games. North Canberra Untouchables
overturned their loss in the 2019/20 Grand Final, winning the 2020 Futsal Premier League Women'’s
Grand Final 3-2 over Canberra Croatia FC after finishing as Premiers. Brittany Palombi and Catherine
Brown shared the Golden Boot, both scoring 11 goals in eight round matches.

Boomerangs FS competed in the Football NSW Futsal Premier League 1 competition in 2019/20
following promotion in the 2018/19 season. The Club was relegated after finishing bottom of the
Club Championship, as none of their teams finished in the top four.



ACT FUTSAL
STATE SQUADS
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NATIONAL FUTSAL

CHAMPIONSHIPS
Ul2 BOYS

Coach: Elie Darwich
Finish: 5th in Pool B

U133 BOYS

Coach: Brady Nixon
Finish: 3rd in Pool B - Lost Semi-final to FNSW Metro
Thunder

U114 BOYS

Coach: Grant Davoren
Finish: 4th in Pool B — Lost Qualifying final to FNSW
Metro Thunder

U115 BOYS

Coach: Jayde James-Ward
Finish: 6th on Table

U16 BOYS

Coach: Zdravko Milicevic
Finish: 6th on Table

U13 GIRLS

Coach: Ahmed Ugool
Finish: 4th in Pool B — Lost Qualifying final to FNSW
Metro Thunder

U1S GIRLS

Coach: Eddie Senatore
Finish: 3rd on Table - Lost Semi-final to FNSW Metro
Thunder

U17 GIRLS

Coach: Nick Van Aalst
Finish: Tst on Table — Lost Semi-final to FNSW Country
North

ATHLETES WITH
DISABILITIES ROYAL

Coach: Bernie To
Assistant Coach: Merryn Brown

Finish: 3RD on Table — Lost Preliminary Final to Football

SA

CAPITAL
FOOTBALL

A

ATHLETES WITH
DISABILITIES GOLD

Coach: Kelly Stirton

Assistant Coach: Phil Booth

Manager: Merryn Brown

Finish: 5th on Table - Lost Elimination Final to Football
SA
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In a year that presented unique challenges, Capital Football
was able to adapt and deliver a total of 85 referee activities,
which included: referee courses and education, training and
development sessions. A total of 1766 people attended the
activities throughout the year.

The number of new football match officials increased by 12% in 2020, with the total

number of female match officials increasing by 18%. This represents 23% of the total
football match officials, compared to 19% in 2019.

In 2020 the number of Game Leaders increased by 43%. Game Leaders now
account for 39% of the total registered football match officials.

There was an increase (11%) in registered futsal match officials for the 2019/20 futsal
season, with female match officials now accounting for 11% of total registered futsal
match officials, compared to less than 1% in 2018/19.

CAPITAL
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The retention rate of futsal match officials increased from 51% (2018/19) to 58%
(2019/20), while the retention rate of football match officials has remained at 45%
for the third consecutive year.

REFEREE DEVELOPMENT
FOOTBALL

The most important date of the year is the Preseason Seminar. This is the only day in
which Capital Football endeavours to get all the referees together in preparation for
the season ahead.

For the first time, the 2020 seminar was a full day event (9am to 5pm) with the
highest participation rate seen in recent years. The seminar was opened by the
Chair of the Board of Directors and presentations were provided by Matthew
Cheeseman (Football Australia Referee Manager), an expert psychologist on mental
resilience, and a sports chaplain.

In 2020 for the first time, educations sessions were scheduled twice per month and
female only education sessions were introduced into the Referees Calendar.

With the impact of COVID-19 and the suspension of football activities, education
sessions continued as scheduled using video conferencing with additional sessions
introduced in July in the lead up to the resumption of competitions.

The use of video conferencing for delivery meant that sessions were able to be
recorded. This enabled referees who were unable to attend, to view the session
later, as well as giving people the opportunity to revisit and review session content.

Referees, like players, need a degree of physical fitness to be able to cope with the
demands of the game as well as prevent injury. Providing opportunities for referees
to work on their physical fitness is important for the game as well as the longevity of
the referees. As such weekly training sessions were delivered, as was pre-season
fitness testing.



24

CAPITAL
= FOOTBALL

Notwithstanding the impact of extreme heat, smoke, COVID-19, the suspension of football activities, wet weather and issues with venues, more training sessions were
delivered in 2020 than were scheduled for the entirety of 2019.

FUTSAL

A preseason seminar for Futsal Premier League (FPL) and senior competitions was held and for the first time was a full day event. The seminar followed a similar purpose
to the football pre-season seminar: to prepare referees for the season ahead and attain consistency in refereeing throughout the season.

Like football referee sessions, futsal referee education sessions were held using video conferencing facilities. Sessions were held in October and early November and
topics from the preseason seminar were revised and results of video / Laws tests were reviewed.

REFLIVE

Capital Football partnered with sports technology company RefLIVE in 2020 to monitor the wellbeing of match officials and track team behaviour across football and
futsal competitions.

The RefLIVE smartphone app allows referees to complete a post-match analysis of their match experience, the behaviour of the teams they officiated and a self-
assessment of their own performance.

RefLIVE provided Capital Football with insights into the referee’s experience on a week-to-week basis. Importantly, RefLIVE enabled Capital Football to provide support
to referees within 48 hours who experience extreme abuse from players, team officials or spectators during a match.

SUCCESS STORIES

The following Capital Football match officials participated in the 2020 National Futsal Championships held in Canberra:

» Referees: Alasdair Moore, Cameron Shelton, Curtis Schaeffer, Jackson Tippett, Jordan King, Karla Martin, Scott Boon

» Referee Assessors: James Nikolaidis

In his third year officiating in the Foxtel Y-League, Nathan Shakespear was the Referee for the Foxtel Y-League Grand Final between Sydney FC and Melbourne Victory.

Referee Georgia Ghirardello and assistant referees Lauren Hargrave and Delfina Dimoski made Capital Football history, becoming the first all-female referee team to
officiate a Capital Football NPLT Men's match.

Owen Goldrick, Greg Taylor and Adam Powers were reappointed to the A-League Assistant Referee panel for the 2020/21 season, and Richard Naumovski was also
reappointed as an A-League Assistant Video Referee.
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Lauren Hargrave and Delfina Dimoski were reappointed to the Westfield W-League
Assistant Referee panel, with Georgia Ghirardello also retaining her position on the
Westfield W-League Referee panel.

Clive Mackillop continues to represent Capital Football at a national level with his
reappointment to the national Referee Assessor panel.

Grand Final Honour Wall

Football

2020 NPL: Capital Football Men's 1 Grand Final Alexander Twomey
2020 NPL: Capital Football Men's 2 Grand Final Nathan Shakespear
2020 NPL: Capital Football Women's Grand Final Delfina Dimoski
Futsal

Richard Brown
Cameron Shelton
Scott Boon

Karla Martin
James Nikolaidis
Alasdair Grocock

2019/20 Capital Football
Futsal Premier League Men's Grand Final

2019/20 Capital Football
Futsal Premier League Women's Grand Final

Scott Boon
Richard Brown
Cameron Shelton

2020 Capital Football
Futsal Premier League Men's Grand Final

Cameron Shelton
Alasdair Moore
Jordan King

2020 Capital Football
Futsal Premier League Women's Grand Final
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FEMALE FOOTBALL WEEK

In 2020, Capital Football endeavoured to extend Female Football Week, by asking
clubs to run programs throughout the year.

Brindabella Blues Football Club successfully ran a Female Football girls only program
in March, where the current female players invited a female friend to come and try
football. It was a huge success with more than 30 females participating.

As part of the national Female Football Week awards, Capital Football coach Kelly
Stirton was named Female Community Coach of the Year, recognised for her work in
being a female coach within the footballing community.

FOOTBALL CONNECT

CANBERRA UNITED ALL ABILITY
ACADEMY

The Canberra United All Ability Academy is the first dedicated football academy for
people with a disability in the ACT. The Academy is believed to be the first all ability
academy aligned with either an A-League or Westfield W-League club and is open to
all footballers with cerebral palsy, acquired brain injury or symptoms acquired from a
stroke.

The academy was launched nationally on 7 September 2020, with 19 players joining
the academy. The players trained two nights per week (Monday and Friday), at
Hawker Football Centre.
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CANBERRA UNITED POWERCHAIR
FOOTBALL TEAM

Canberra United held a Development Weekend with the New South Wales (NSW)
Development Powerchair Team as well as a few of the Victoria players in early March.
During the weekend, the teams went through skill sessions and practice games.

The teams took place in skill sessions and practice games throughout the weekend,
culminating in the inaugural Rotary Cup match between Canberra United Powerchair
and the NSW Development Powerchair team. Canberra United took out the close
match 1-0.

Since 2017, the team has grown to eight players who train once a week, using
generic electric wheelchairs with homemade modified bumpers.

To help the team reach their full potential, Capital Football approached Rotary to ask
for their assistance to raise over $120,000 for nine new Powerchairs to be bought
from the United States.

In October 2020, the Canberra United Powerchair Football team received a new
set of wheels, thanks to the generous efforts of Rotary, Capital Region Muscular
Dystrophy and the Canberra community.

ALL-ABILITY LEAGUE

2020 saw the All-Ability League players focus on increasing their skillset, under
coaches Merryn Brown and Jason Driscoll. Players of all abilities trained together
in an 8-week program, allowing 25 players to join in skills sessions every Saturday
morning at Hawker Football Centre.



SKILL ACQUISITION
PROGRAM

The 2020 Skill Acquisition Program (SAP) encompassed six age groups in both boys and girls: U7, U8,
U9, U10, U11 and U12.

These groups were part of a training environment which was designed to supplement the club-based
training and games of each player by providing additional training contacts during the week.

A user-friendly registration model was implemented in 2020 allowing players to register for just one
term or all four and choosing their preferred training night (Monday and/or Friday). More than 100
young players were involved in the 2020 SAP season.

The SAP coaches used a mix of traditional skills training delivery methods and newly introduced
Game-Intervention-Game (GIG) methodology.

The program was conducted by qualified coaches (minimum C-Licence).

The Head Skill Acquisition Trainer was Phil Booth, who for the past 22 years has specialised in the skill
acquisition phase of development.

Throughout 2020, all of the coaches who delivered the SAP program went through weekly design and
self/group evaluations for the purpose of personal and professional development.

The SAP program ran from February through to early December.
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The Capital Football TSP continued in 2020, allowing players to attend the
supplementary training in addition to their club training and matches throughout the
year.

TSP consisted of three groups across the U13, U14 and U15 age groups, training twice per week (Monday and
Wednesday).

TSP focussed on skill acquisition and game training throughout the year, which aligns with Football Australia’s
Talent Identification guidelines.

The TSP Coaches maintained contact with all players during the COVID-19 lockdown via Zoom meetings and
our various Slack channels. Activities included:

» Monday-Wednesday-Friday challenges

» One-on-one online meetings with players

» A Zoom meeting with former Socceroo Luke Wilkshire

» A Zoom meeting with Football Australia Technical Director and National U17 coach Trevor Morgan.

Tobias Peil and Noah Steinacker were invited to participate in a Football Australia Elite Game in New South
Wales at the start of the season.

There were similar games planned throughout the season, that were subsequently cancelled due to COVID-19.
The coaches for the 2020 TSP squads were:

» Sam Mclaughlin-Wilden-U13
» AliEfe-U14
» RayJunnaand Ron Smith-U15 +
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The Canberra United Academy (CUA) season was somewhat
disrupted due to Covid-19 and the change in Head Coach at the
start of the National Premier League Women’s (NPLW) season.
Capital Football Technical Director, Scott O’Donell took over the
First team duties until Vicki Linton was appointed and took up her
role as Head Coach of Canberra United (CU) and CUA towards the
end of the NPLW season.

Like we do before the start of every season, we held an ‘Information Night’, to explain to
our players and parents the expectations for the season ahead.

All training sessions for CUA were held at Hawker Football Centre. This made things easy
in terms of the movement of players between squads. The CUA players were made aware
at the start of the season that players will be selected in the respective teams based on
their performances throughout the season in training sessions and in games.

There were regular meetings between coaches to decide on the make-up of the squads
each week.

PERFORMANCE MANAGER

Caleb Smith was appointed as the Performance Programs Manager, which allowed the
CUA Senior Squads to receive regular GPS reports for both coaches and players.

This was beneficial in both educating players in how to benchmark their performances
using the data collected as well as providing national team coaches with data to compare
players in the CUA program to others from around the country.

INJURY CLINIC

Sarah Kelly (CU and CUA Physiotherapist) conducted an injury clinic every Thursday, to
diagnose and treat our injured players.

Physiotherapists or Sports Trainers were present at all training sessions and games
throughout the season.
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PLAYERS REVIEWS

Player reviews took place at the conclusion of the season. All coaches sat down with their
players, to go through their Individual Development Plans, which included identifying
areas of improvement, setting goals and preparing for the 2021 season.

COMMUNICATION VIA SLACK

Communication through Slack allowed a platform for information to be shared instantly,
also allowing opportunity for different groups to be added.

COACHES

U13: Pat Mills

ul15: Troy Boots

uiz: Sarah West

Reserves: Eddie Senatore

Firsts: Scott O'Donell and Vicki Linton



CLUB COACH 2\ caema,
COORDINATOR

33

The Club Coach Coordinator role was introduced in 2020 to assist clubs in providing support for their NPL Youth and NPLW
coaches.

In addition to providing individual support for coaches, the Club Coach Coordinator also helped coaches prepare periodised training plans, session plans, and conducted
model sessions throughout the season.

The Club Coach Coordinator was also available to observe and provide feedback to coaches with their training sessions and match day management.
Responsibilities of the Club Coach Coordinator include:

Supporting the NPLY and NPLW Coaches
Monitoring and mentoring club coaches and providing support based on their individual needs.
Assisting coaches to develop and review their coaching and reflecting on their behaviours.

Ensuring the coaches have access to appropriate learning opportunities and resources including websites, courses, and workshops.

v v v v Vv

Creating a positive, safe and non-threatening environment in which players and coaches feel that they can try new things, make mistakes and learn.

In addition to the CCC program, Capital Football also engaged with female coaches via a Mentoring Program, which involved monthly group meetings with the respective
coaches. The Mentoring Programs included individual and group meetings about behaviour management, communications skills, leadership and career planning.
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In 2020, online courses and workshops took the lead with
Community Coaching Courses being adapted to online learning
modules and the first ever online Football Australia B-Licence.
This allowed courses to be delivered to more than 150 coaches
throughout the year.

COMMUNITY COACHING
COURSES

A total of 13 community courses were delivered throughout 2020 via online
learning and face-to-face contact in the ACT region, ranging from the MiniRoos
Certificate up to the Skill Training Certificate. The Community Coaching portfolio
courses are based around helping new coaches attain education and experience as
they begin their coaching journey.

The MiniRoos Certificate is for coaches who are working with players between the
ages of 5 and 9 in the Discovery Phase of the National Coaching Curriculum. This
area of the curriculum focuses on developing the coach'’s skills to enable them to
create a fun football environment for MiniRoos aged players.

The Skills Training Certificate (STC) is aimed at coaches who work with the 9-13 age
bracket, who are in the Skills Training Phase of the Curriculum. The focus of a coach
in this phase is on the development and delivery of the four core skills: passing/
striking the ball, first touch, running with the ball and ‘one vs one’ situations. A
number of clubs hosted STC coaching courses, and a total 40 coaches received
their STC qualification as a result.
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2020 Courses Delivered and Coaches Accredited

Course Title No. of Courses  Participants
Grassroots 7 32

Skills Training 3 40

Game Training Certificate 1 0

Senior Coaching Certificate 0O 0
Goalkeeping Award 0 0

Futsal Certificate 1 0

Futsal License 1 0

Totals 13 72

ADVANCED COACH
EDUCATION

The implementation of the NPL/NPLW and NPLY minimum coaching accreditation
saw an increase in demand and need for advanced courses in the region. Having
more qualified coaches will help clubs ensure their coaching staff are suitably
qualified and accredited to oversee teams in 2021 and beyond. As seen in the table
below, 95 coaches attended Advanced Coaching courses in 2020.
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2020 Regional Advanced Courses

Course Title No. of Courses  Participants
FA/AFC 'C' Part 1 2 3

FA/AFC 'C' Youth Licence 2 43

FA/AFC 'C' Senior Licence 2 28

FA/AFC 'C' Youth Licence Part 2 1 1

FA/AFC 'C' Senior Licence Part 2 1 5

FA/AFC 'B' Licence ] 15

Total 9 95

In addition to the advanced courses, the Capital Football Performance Department
conducted multiple online coach education workshops from ‘Manual Match
Analysis’ to ‘Managing Unlimited Substitutions’.

Each workshop was worth 10 points towards the advanced coach’s re-accreditation.

With the lack of face-to-face time due to Covid-19, the number of online sessions
increased with the inception of ‘From the Sidelines’ a new online interactive
workshop. Guest speakers ranged from Football Australia Technical Director Trevor
Morgan to our own panel of advanced female coaches.

A total of nine ‘From the Sideline’ sessions were delivered covering a multitude of
relevant topics from ‘Goalkeeper training methods’ to ‘Returning to football non-
contact session design’.

Capital Football would like to thank all guests for their expertise and taking the time
to deliver these beneficial workshops.

Capital Football was able to deliver the only face-to-face State Coaching Conference
last year, which was attended by 45 local coaches. Our guest speakers included:
Giovani Fernandes (Senior Manager Coaching Development Department- FIFA),
Trevor Morgan (Football Australia National Technical Director), and Kevin Grima
(Football Australia Boys Youth Development Manager).

CAPITAL
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The 2019/20 season saw Canberra United compete in Season
12 of the Westfield W-League and in the Foxtel Y-League for the
third time.

WESTFIELD W-LEAGUE

Season 12 of the WWL saw internationals Kaleigh Kurtz, Katie Stengel and Simone
Charley (USA), Camila (Brazil) and Elise Thorsnes (Norway) sign for Canberra
United. There was a good mix of players with CUA products Hayley Taylor-Young,
Laura Hughes and Matilda Karly Roestbaken, joined by some experienced players
such as Nikola Orgill, Olivia Price and Sham Khamis.

Canberra United kicked off the 2019/20 season in style, with American import
Simone Charley scoring a brace against Perth Glory, in front of more than 1,400
passionate Canberra fans.

In Round 3, Canberra won its first away game in 741 days, taking down the
Newcastle Jets 3-2.

That game was also a breakthrough clash for Canberra United Academy graduate
Hayley Taylor-Young, who made her Westfield W-League debut by coming off the
bench in the 84th minute.

Despite moments of magic, Canberra United finished the season in 6th place,
recording 4 wins, 1 draw and 7 losses.

Heather Garriock coached her final season with Canberra United, after three years
at the helm. The team sent her off in style for her final home game, with a 3-1 victory
over Adelaide.

Season 13 of the WW.L has seen big changes in staff and players. Former Matildas
assistant coach, Vicki Linton was appointed as Head Coach, with support from

Emily Husband and Sarah West (Assistant Coaches), Chantel Jones (Goalkeeping
Coach), Sarah Kelly (Physiotherapist and S&C coach) and new team manager Caleb
Smith.

New signings included local Canberra girls: Sally James, Emma Ilijoski, Grace
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Maher, Sasha Grove and Nicki Flannery. Canberra United also welcomed back fan
favourites Michelle Heyman and Kendall Fletcher.

The 2020-21 WW.L season was delayed due to COVID-19 but the delay did not stop
Canberra United from winning their opening game at their new home, Viking Park
against Adelaide (3-2).

WESTFIELD W-LEAGUE 2019/20
AWARD WINNERS

Player of the Year: Kaleigh Kurtz

Players’ Player of the Year: Leena Khamis

University of Canberra Rising Star: Hayley Taylor-Young
Supporters’ Player of the Year: Simone Charley

v v v Vv Vv

Drake International Volunteer of the Year: Jackson Tippett

FOXTEL Y-LEAGUE

The Canberra United Foxtel Y-League team continued to make strides during its
third season in the competition.

Led by Ray Junna, it was a tough ten rounds for the team who were often faced with
an onslaught of far more experienced players.

The side claimed its only point of the season in Round 5, managing a draw against
Sydney FC at McKellar Park. Two first half goals from Nikola Ujdur and Luca Florez
combined with some excellent work in defence saw the side finish the game with a
2-2 draw.

FOXTEL Y-LEAGUE 2019/20 AWARD
WINNERS

» Player of the Year: Michael Piccolo
» Players’ Player of the Year: Lachlan Griffiths
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DIV 1-STATE LEAGUE MEN'S DIV 2 - STATE LEAGUE MEN'S

Pos Team P WFFDL F A GD PTS Pos Team P WFFDL F A GD PTS
1 ANUFCI 10 6 0 1 3 18 14 4 19 1 ANUFC3 11T 10 0 0 1 44 7 37 30
2 UC Stars Football 5 9 5 0 1 3 21 10 11 16 2 ANUFC5 10 8 0 1 1 41 13 28 25
3 Woden Valley SC1 10 5 0 1 4 23 19 4 16 3 UC Stars Football 7 9 6 O 1 2 27 12 15 19
4 CoomaSCI1 7 4 1 1 2 10 3 7 13 4 Narrabundah FC 1 8 5 0 1 2 23 16 7 16
5 Weston Molonglo FC 1 7 4 0 1 2 12 6 6 13 5 Canberra City SC 3 10 4 0 1 5 21 28 -7 13
6 YassFC1 9 3 1 1 510 19 9 10 6 BurnsFC2 9 3 0 2 4 18 17 1 1N
7 Canberra City SC 1 7 2 0 0 5 13 26 -13 6 7 Weston Molonglo FC 3 8 3 O 1 4 15 15 0 10
8 Brindabella Blues FC 2 7 1 0 06 6 16 -10 3 8 Belwest Foxes SC 3 9 2 0 07 9 28 -19 o6

9 Belsouth FC 2 10 0 0 1 9 14 41 -27 1

DIV 1 RES - STATE LEAGUE MEN’S
DIV 2 RES - STATE LEAGUE MEN’S

Pos Team P WFFDL F A GD PTS
1 UC Stars Football 6 9 7 0 2 0 40 10 30 23 Pos Team P WFFDL F A GD PTS
2 Canberra City SC 2 6 5 0 1 0 27 9 18 16 1 ANUFC4 1T 9 0 0 2 32 12 20 27
3 ANUFC?2 9 4 0 1 4 25 21 4 13 2 ANUFCG6 10 7 0 1 2 23 13 10 22
4 YassFC2 10 4 1 1 5 15 19 -4 13 3 Weston Molonglo FC 4 9 6 1 1 2 29 11 18 19
5 Brindabella Blues FC 3 6 3 0 0 3 16 18 -2 9 4 Belwest Foxes SC 1 9 5 0 3 1 27 19 8 18
6 Weston Molonglo FC 2 6 2 0 1 3 21 18 3 7 5 BurnsFC3 9 5 01 3 17 8 9 16
7 Cooma SC 2 7 2 1 05 8 30 22 6 6 Canberra City SC4 10 5 005 26 29 -3 15
8 Woden Valley SC 2 9 1 0 0 8 16 43 -27 3 7 Belsouth FC 1 1M 2 0 1 8 16 40 -24 7
8 UC Stars Football 8 9 2 0 0 7 19 27 -8 6
9 Tuggeranong United FC 3 9 1 0 2 6 15 31 -6 5
10 Narrabundah FC 2 9 1 01 7 16 30 -14 4

38
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DIV 3 - STATE LEAGUE MEN'S DIV 1- COMMUNITY LEAGUE MEN'S

Pos Team P WFFDL F A GD PTS Pos Team P WFFD L F A GD PTS
1 Brindabella Blues FC 6 10 9 0O 1 O 48 8 40 28 1 BelnorthFC4 9 9 1 0 O 57 3 54 27
2 ANUFC7 9 8 0O O 1 40 11 29 24 2 ADFAFCI 7 6 0 1 0 27 7 20 19
3 Belwest Foxes SC 4 9 6 0 0 3 28 11 17 18 3 Monaro Panthers FC 3 10 6 0 0 4 23 13 10 18
4 UC Stars Football 10 8 5 0 0 3 18 16 2 15 4 Monaro Panthers FC 4 m 5 0 2 4 32 27 5 17
5 ANUFCI12 10 4 0 1 5 20 35 -15 13 5 BurnsFC1 10 5 0 2 3 29 24 5 17
6 Woden Valley SC 3 8 4 0 0 4 15 22 -7 12 6 Gungahlin Juventus 1 9 4 0 2 3 23 27 -4 14
7 Gungahlin United FC 3 8 3 0 1 4 23 26 -3 10 7 Belnorth FC 5 10 2 0 0 8 23 51 -28 6
8 Belnorth FC 10 10 3 01 6 15 23 -8 10 8 Palerang United FC 1 0 0 0 1 9 2 27 -25 1
9 Woden Valley SC 5 10 1 0 1 8 18 57 -39 4 9 ADFAFC2 7 0 0 1 6 7 44 -37 1
10 Belnorth FC9 10 0 01 9 9 25 -6 1

DIV 2 - COMMUNITY LEAGUE MEN’S
DIV 3 RES - STATE LEAGUE MEN’S

Pos Team P WFFD L F A GD PTS
Pos Team P WFFDL F A GD PTS 1 Lanyon United FC 1 10 9 01 0 5 8 42 28
1 ANUFCT 10 9 0 0 1 37 4 33 27 2 MajuraFC4 8 5 0 0 3 37 8 29 15
2 ANUFCS8 10 8 0 0 2 26 13 13 24 3 ADFAFC3 6 4 0 1 1 17 7 10 13
3 Belnorth FC 8 10 6 0 2 2 39 20 19 20 4 Brindabella Blues FC 4 5 4 00 1 15 6 9 12
4 Gungahlin United FC 5 9 5 0 2 2 36 20 16 17 5 Weston Molonglo FC 6 7 4 0 0 3 14 15 -1 12
5 Woden Valley SC 6 10 4 0 3 3 26 18 8 15 6 Belwest Foxes SC 2 6 2 00 4 M 14 -3 6
6 Belwest Foxes SC5 100 5 0 0 5 22 16 6 15 7 ADFAFC4 7 1 00 6 5 36 -31 3
7 Belnorth FC 7 10 3 0 0 7 17 34 -17 9 8 Weston Molonglo FC 5 8 1 0 0 7 8 46 -38 3
8 Brindabella Blues FC 5 10 2 0 1 7 14 28 -14 7
9 Woden Valley SC 4 9 1 0 2 6 11 31 20 5
10 UC Stars Football 11 8 0 0 0 8 6 50 44 O
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DIV 3 - COMMUNITY LEAGUE MEN’S

Pos Team

1

O N O W N

Weston Molonglo FC 7
ANU FC 9

Majura FC 2

Lanyon United FC 2
Gundaroo Bullocks 1
Burns FC 4

Majura FC 3

Gungahlin United FC 4
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DIV 4 - COMMUNITY LEAGUE MEN’S

Pos Team
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ANU FC 14
ANUFC13

Weston Molonglo FC 8
Lanyon United FC 3
Belnorth FC 6
Gungahlin United FC 6
ANU FC 10
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DIV 1- MASTERS LEAGUE MEN'S

Pos Team

1

N OO AN

Weston Molonglo FC 17
UC Stars Football 12
Burns FC 5
Queanbeyan City FC 1
Gungahlin United FC 7
Monaro Panthers FC 5
ANU FC 15
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DIV 2 - MASTERS LEAGUE MEN'S

Pos Team

1
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Belwest Foxes SC 9
Lanyon United FC 4
Weston Molonglo FC 18
Woden Valley SC9

UC Stars Football 13
Gungahlin United FC 8
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ANU FC 16

Weston Molonglo FC 19
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Woden Valley SC 10
Gungahlin United FC 9
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045 - MASTERS LEAGUE MEN'S DIV 2 - STATE LEAGUE WOMEN"'S
Pos Team PWFFDL F A GD PTS Pos Team P WFFDL F A GD PTS
1 Brindabella Blues FC 8 8 50 3 0 36 8 28 18 1 O'Connor Knights SC 1 8 7 0O 1 0 30 2 28 22
2 ANUFC17 8 50 2 1 35 10 25 17 2 UC Stars Football 2 9 6 02117 9 8 20
3 Woden Valley SC 11 7 5 0 2 0 27 4 23 17 3 Narrabundah FC 3 8 5 0 1 2 23 5 18 16
4 Canberra Croatia FC 1 75 0 2 019 4 15 17 4 Lanyon United FC 7 9 3 0 2 4 14 24 -10 T
5 Woden Valley SC 12 8 301 4 19 18 1 10 5 Brindabella Blues FC 11 7 3 0 1 3 15 12 3 10
6 Belnorth FC1 8 2 0 2 4 20 24 -4 8 6 ADFAFC7 6 2 0 2 2 13 13 0 8
7 Lanyon United FC 5 8 2 0 2 4 12 27 -15 8 7 Weston Molonglo FC 9 7 2 0 2 3 11 11 0 8
8 BurnsFC7 8 001 7 9 34 -25 1 8 ANUWFC4 9 2 0 25 1 16 -5 8
9 Belnorth FC 2 8 0 01 7 8 56 -48 1 9 MajuraFC6 8 1 0 1 6 7 24 17 4
10 Weston Molonglo FC 10 7 1 0 06 8 33 -25 3

DIV 1 - STATE LEAGUE WOMEN'S
DIV 3 - STATE LEAGUE WOMEN'S

Pos Team P WFFDL F A GD PTS
1 ANUWEFC1 9 7 0 1 1 44 7 37 22 Pos Team P WFFDL F A GD PTS
2 Canberra City SC5 8 6 0 2 0 28 10 18 20 1 Monaro Panthers FC 1 8 7 0 1 0 39 8 31 22
3 ANUWEFC?2 9 6 0 1 2 24 11 13 19 2 Weston Molonglo FC 12 7 6 0 1 0 19 7 12 19
4 Brindabella Blues FC 10 8 4 0 1 3 15 18 -3 13 3 ANUWEFC5 9 6 0 O 3 23 19 4 18
5 UC Stars Football 1 9 4 0 1 4 12 15 -3 13 4 UC Stars Football 4 7 3 0 2 212 9 3 N
6 Belwest Foxes SC6 8 2 006 7 20 -13 6 5 ANUWEFCI0 8 3 0 1 4 25 20 5 10
7 ANUWEFC 3 8 1. 0 07 7 36 -29 3 6 Belsouth FC 5 7 2 0 1 4 13 33 -20 7
8 Belnorth FC 11 7 0 0 07 4 24 20 O 7 Lanyon United FC 6 7 2 0 05 10 16 -6 6
8 Canberra City SC6 7 1.0 2 4 8 12 -4 5
9  Weston Molonglo FC 11 7 0 0 0 7 3 23 -20 O
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DIV 4 - STATE LEAGUE WOMEN"'S MASTERS LEAGUE WOMEN"'S
Pos Team P WFFDL F A GD PTS Pos Team P WFFD L F A GD PTS
1 Weston Molonglo FC 13 9 7 O 1 1 49 18 31 22 1 MajuraFC5 7 6 0 O 1 21 6 15 18
2 Belsouth FC 6 9 6 0 2 1 45 22 23 20 2 BumnsFCo6 7 5 0 1 1 25 11 14 16
3 ANUWFCG6 9 6 0 2 1 29 10 19 20 3 Narrabundah FC 5 7 3 01 3 14 13 1 10
4 YassFC4 9 6 0 1 2 51 22 29 19 4 Weston Molonglo FC 15 8 1 0 25 7 21 14 5
5 Narrabundah FC 4 1050 3 2 20 19 1 18 5 Woden Valley SC 8 7 0 0 25 9 25 -6 2
6 Woden Valley SC7 8 3 01 4 25 25 0 10
AT 1030161030 210  GyYI2DIV1-ACTEWAGLJUNIOR LEAGUE
8 Belwest Foxes SC 8 9 2 0 1 6 13 27 -14 7
9 Monaro Panthers FC 2 9 1 0 08 7 40 -33 3 Pos Team PWDL F A GD PTS
10 Belnorth FC 12 8 0 0 0 8 4 40 36 0 1 Woden Weston FC 1 10 9 0 1 40 5 35 27
2 MajuraFC11 9 61 2 32 17 15 19
DIV 5 - STATE I-EAGUE WOMEN'S 3  Woden Weston FC 5 9 5 2 2 20 13 7 17
4 Weston Molonglo FC 21 9 4 2 3 21 26 -5 14
Pos Team P WFFD L F A GD PTS 5 Belsouth FC 28 9 4 0 5 20 18 2 12
1 Belsouth FC7 8 6 0 2 0 32 5 27 20 6 Gungahlin United FC 54 9 3 0 6 8 18 -10 9
2 MajuraFC8 7 501 115 8 7 16 7 Belnorth FC 14 9 306 17 29 -12 9
3 Weston Molonglo FC 14 8 3050 16 5 11 14 8 Woden Valley SC 35 10 01 9 o6 38 32 1
4 MajuraFC7 8 301 4 11 11 0 10
5 Palerang United FC 2 9 3 0 1 5 1 16 -5 10 G u‘lz Dlv z - ACTEWAGL'““IOR LEAGUE
6 Gungahlin United FC 1 8 301 4 13 21 -8 10
7 Gungahlin United FC 2 8 2 0331212 0 9 Pos Team PWDL F A GD PTS
8 ANUWFCS 9 2 025 9 16 -7 8 1 Tuggeranong United FC 2 9 8 0 1 45 15 30 24
9 Belnorth FC 13 7 1 0 0 6 3 28 25 3 2  Monaro Panthers FC 2 7 5 0 2 34 22 12 15
3 MajuraFC 22 7 4 1 2 30 9 21 13
4 Weston Molonglo FC 20 6 22 2 14 19 -5 8
5 Woden Valley SC 36 8 2 0 6 19 4 22 6
6 Radford College 21 9 01 8 6 42 -36 1
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GU14 DIV 1- ACTEWAGL JUNIORLEAGUE GU16DIV1- ACTEWAGL JUNIORLEAGUE

Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
1 Belsouth FC 25 9 9 0 0 77 10 67 27 1 Woden Weston FC 1 9 9 00 4 5 36 2/
2 MajuraFC 23 8 6 1 1 44 9 35 19 2 Canberra Croatia FC 2 8 6 0 2 32 9 23 18
3  Weston Molonglo FC 50 9 5 1 3 39 15 24 16 3 Queanbeyan City FC 2 9 4 1 4 15 22 -7 13
4 Woden Valley SC 27 8 4 1 3 36 19 17 13 4 Radford College 18 10 4 1 5 15 24 -9 13
5 Brindabella Blues FC 20 7 3 3 1 22 8 14 12 5 CoomaSC9 9 3 2 4 24 30 -6 1N
6 BelnorthFC15 7 2 0 5 15 28 -13 6 6 Weston Molonglo FC 23 5 30218 9 9 9
7 Woden Valley SC 28 8 2 0 6 28 56 -28 6 7  Woden Valley SC 19 9 2 2 5 12 22 -10 8
8 Gungahlin United FC 53 8 1 0 7 12 47 35 3 8 Belnorth FC 16 8 107 7 25 -18 3
9 Belwest Foxes SC 17 6 0 06 6 8 -79 O

GU16 DIV 2 - ACTEWAGL JUNIOR LEAGUE
GU14 DIV 2 - ACTEWAGL JUNIORLEAGUE . . 5 Wb L F A &b pre

Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS 1 Belsouth FC 35 9 51 3 22 16 6 16
1 Weston Molonglo FC 22 8 8 0 O 46 8 38 24 2 MajuraFC16 6 4 2 0 35 11 24 14
2 Radford College 20 9 7 0 2 46 11 35 21 3 Gungahlin United FC 52 6 4 2 0 25 6 19 14
3 Majura FC 25 9 6 21 20 9 11 20 4 Brindabella Blues FC 15 5 212 7 17 -0 7
4 Woden Valley SC 29 9 5 2 2 23 12 11 17 5 MajuraFC17 7 1 3 3 18 19 - 6
5 Majura FC 24 9 50 4 16 17 -1 15 6 Radford College 19 6 1 05 8 23 -15 3
6 Belsouth FC 26 9 3 2 4 29 30 -1 N 7 Woden Valley SC 20 8 00 8 5 60 -55 O
7 Belsouth FC 27 8 2 2 4 23 28 -5 8
8 Monaro Panthers FC 8 9 1 1 7 18 36 -18 4
9 Brindabella Blues FC 21 8 1 1 6 13 39 -26 4
10 Burgmann Anglican School 4 8 0 0 8 1 45 44 O
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GUI8 DIV 1- ACTEWAGL JUNIORLEAGUE OU12DIV 2 - ACTEWAGL JUNIOR LEAGUE

Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
1 Woden Valley SC 13 9 9 0 0 53 5 48 27 1 Woden Valley SC 37 9 7 0 2 57 6 51 2]
2 Majura FC11 9 6 1 2 35 11 24 19 2 Woden Valley SC 39 8 7 0 1 53 5 48 21
3 CoomaSC10 7 51 1 17 10 7 16 3 Gungahlin United FC 27 9 6 0 3 33 29 4 18
4 Woden Valley SC 14 8 50 3 26 20 6 15 4 Belwest Foxes SC 12 9 4 1 4 34 15 19 13
5 Radford College 17 8 2 1 5 26 21 5 7 5 Weston Molonglo FC 24 5 4 1 0 18 3 15 13
6 Radford College 16 6 21 3 15 20 -5 7 6 Gungahlin United FC 26 9 4 05 177 23 -6 12
7 Brindabella Blues FC 14 6 1 0 5 10 33 -23 3 7 Marist Canberra FC 16 9 3 2 4 21 35 -14 1
8 Woden Valley SC 15 8 1 0 7 14 44 -30 3 8 StEdmunds1 10 3 0 7 26 73 -47 9
9 Belnorth FC 45 7 1 0 6 8 40 -32 3 9 Majura FC 29 9 1 0 8 11 61 -50 3

10 Marist Canberra FC 17 8§ 00 8 7 50 43 O

OU12DIV 1- ACTEWAGL JUNIOR LEAGUE
OU12 DIV 3 - ACTEWAGL JUNIORLEAGUE

Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
1 Marist Canberra FC 15 9 7 2 0 42 1 31 23 Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
2 Radford College 10 8 5 2 1 42 13 29 17 1 Palerang United FC - Braidwood 6 9 9 0 0 57 9 48 27
3 Belsouth FC 14 9 50 4 27 28 -1 15 2 Queanbeyan City FC 5 9 6 1 2 42 13 29 19
4 Woden Valley SC 38 9 32 4 19 26 -7 1 3  Woden Valley SC 40 8 6 1 1 21 14 7 19
5 Monaro Panthers FC 10 5 302 177 7 10 9 4 YassFC9 8 33 2 2222 0 12
6 Majura FC 28 9 306 17 34 -17 9 5 Woden Valley SC 41 9 3 2 4 17 38 -21 1
7 Gungahlin United FC 25 9 2 25 11 24 13 8 6 Radford College 11 10 1 3 6 17 34 -17 6
8 Brindabella Blues FC 25 7 1 2 4 14 24 -10 5 7 Belnorth FC 18 9 1 1 7 16 37 -21 4
9 Belnorth FC 17 8 O 1 7 10 33 -23 1 8 Belsouth FC15 10 1 1 8 16 4 -25 4
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OU12DIV 4 - ACTEWAGL JUNIORLEAGUE OU13DIV1-ACTEWAGL JUNIORLEAGUE

Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
1 Monaro Panthers FC 11 9 8 1 0 69 9 60 25 1 Gungahlin United FC 30 10 9 O 1 42 9 33 27
2 CoomaSC3 8 6 0 2 37 16 21 18 2 Belconnen United FC 5 9 7 1 1 38 12 26 22
3 Tuggeranong United FC 9 7 5 0 2 40 16 24 15 3 Canberra Olympic FC 2 10 6 1 3 29 24 5 19
4 Weston Molonglo FC 51 7 4 1 2 27 17 10 13 4 Belsouth FC 12 9 50 4 26 23 3 15
5 Palerang United FC - Bungendore 7 4 3 0 1 21 10 N 9 5 Gungahlin United FC 31 9 4 1 4 27 26 1 13
6 Brindabella Blues FC 26 6 1 05 9 26 -17 3 6 Woden Valley SC 32 9 33 3 15 17 -2 12
7 Weston Molonglo FC 52 8 1 0 7 5 47 -42 3 7 Radford College 8 9 32 4 16 21 -5 1
8 Gungahlin United FC 28 9 009 9 76 67 O 8 Woden Weston FC 2 M 3 2 6 22 33 -11 1

9 Marist Canberra FC 12 1M 2 0 9 15 36 21 6
o U'Iz Dlv 5 - ACTEWAGL’““IOR LEAG“E 10 Weston Molonglo FC 25 9 1 08 8 37 29 3

Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
e e 01 3 o 5 OUI3IDIV2-ACTEWAGL JUNIOR LEAGUE
2 Burgmann Anglican School 1 4 4 0 0 17 3 14 12 Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
3 Belwest Foxes SC 11 6 3 1 2 13 18 -5 10 1 Canberra Croatia FC 4 10 8 1 1 43 14 29 25
4 Capital Country JFC1 6 2 04 8 22 -14 6 2 Gungahlin United FC 22 10 6 1 3 56 21 35 19
5 Monaro Panthers FC 12 4 1 1 2 13 9 4 4 3 CoomaSC5 9 5 0 4 50 32 18 15
6 Burgmann Anglican School 2 7 115 7 19 -12 4 4 Belwest Foxes SC 14 6 5 0 1 27 15 12 15
7 Brindabella Blues FC 27 4 0 1 3 9 22 13 1 5  Gungahlin United FC 23 6 321 15 9 6 1

6 Gungahlin United FC 24 9 3 1 5 34 49 -15 10
7 Belnorth FC 19 9 2 1 6 16 32 -6 7
8 Majura FC 26 6 1 2 3 15 16 - 5
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OU13 DIV 3 - ACTEWAGL JUNIORLEAGUE OU14 DIV 1-ACTEWAGL JUNIORLEAGUE

Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
1 Brindabella Blues FC 23 9 7 0 2 29 21 8 2] 1 Marist Canberra FC 8 9 8 01 39 10 29 24
2 Belnorth FC 20 7 6 01 34 8 26 18 2 Majura FC 20 9 6 2 1 34 14 20 20
3 Palerang United FC - Bungendore 5 9 3 2 4 16 33 -17 1 3 Marist Canberra FC 9 9 504 18 27 9 15
4 Marist Canberra FC 13 9 3 1 5 21 17 4 10 4 Gungahlin United FC 18 9 4 2 3 22 11 11 14
5 Belnorth FC 22 6 3 03 14 20 6 9 5 Radford College 6 9 4 0 5 20 23 -3 12
6 Weston Molonglo FC 26 7 21 4 10 21 -1 7 6 Woden Valley SC 30 8 3 2 3 15 16 - 11
7 Majura FC 27 8 2 1 5 16 30 -14 7 7 Gungahlin United FC 19 8 1 0 7 10 26 -6 3
8 Belwest Foxes SC 13 8 1 1 6 13 30 -17 4 8 Palerang United FC - Bungendore 4 7 1 0 6 4 22 -18 3

9 Marist Canberra FC 10 3 003 2 19 17 O

OU13 DIV 4 -ACTEWAGL JUNIOR LEAGUE
OU14 DIV 2 - ACTEWAGL JUNIOR LEAGUE

Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
1 StEdmunds 2 6 4 2 0 29 12 17 14 Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
2 Woden Valley SC 33 6 3 0 3 20 12 8 9 1 Belnorth FC 23 9 8 1 0 45 9 36 25
3 YassFC8 8 5 1 2 29 21 8 16 2 Belwest Foxes SC 15 8 8 0 0 47 5 42 24
4 Brindabella Blues FC 24 7 3 1 3 18 30 -12 10 3 Weston Molonglo FC 27 8 7 0 1 28 9 19 2]
5 Marist Canberra FC 14 8 2 2 4 23 40 -17 8 4  CoomaSC7 8 5 0 3 27 17 10 15
6 Radford College 9 8 1 2 5 13 3 22 5 5 MajuraFC 22 9 3 1 5 23 24 -1 10
7 Belsouth FC 13 8 0 2 6 11 35 24 2 6 YassFC7 9 3 06 26 288 -2 9
7 Palerang United FC - Bungendore 4 10 2 3 5 23 40 -17 9
8 Gungahlin United FC 20 5 2 0 3 22 22 O 6
9 Majura FC 21 6 1 2 3 16 18 -2 5
10 Monaro Panthers FC 7 10 1 1 8 24 64 -40 4
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OU14 DIV 3 - ACTEWAGL JUNIORLEAGUE OU1I5DIV 2 - ACTEWAGL JUNIOR LEAGUE

Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
1 Woden Valley SC 31 9 8 O 1 57 13 44 24 1 Gungahlin United FC 16 9 6 1 2 45 27 18 19
2 Weston Molonglo FC 28 8 6 0 2 37 23 14 18 2 StEdmunds 3 8 5 1 2 38 12 26 16
3 Gungahlin United FC 21 9 3 2 4 28 24 4 1 3 Woden Valley SC 25 6 4 1 1 51 10 41 13
4 Queanbeyan City FC 4 10 3 25 31 34 -3 1 4 Brindabella Blues FC 18 8 4 1 3 28 36 -8 13
5 Radford College 7 7 22 3 20 31 -1 8 5 Brindabella Blues FC 19 4 3 1 0 16 5 11 10
6 Belwest Foxes SC 16 8 2 2 4 20 33 -13 8 6 MajuraFC19 6 3 1 2 22 14 8 10
7 Brindabella Blues FC 22 6 0 2 4 6 34 -28 2 7 Radford College 5 8 2 1 518 32 -14 7
8 Marist Canberra FC 11 5 023 5 36 31 2 8 Gungahlin United FC 17 9 1 1 7 12 47 35 4
9 Belwest Foxes SC 30 6 0 0O 6 10 30 20 O 9 Woden Valley SC 26 4 1 03 7 24 17 3

10 Belsouth FC 11 7 007 4 70 66 O

OU15DIV 1- ACTEWAGL JUNIORLEAGUE
OU16 DIV 1 - ACTEWAGL JUNIORLEAGUE

Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
1 Gungahlin United FC 15 9 8 O 1 43 8 35 24 Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
2 Marist Canberra FC 6 9 7 0 2 31 9 22 2 1 Woden Valley SC 22 9 8 1 0 54 4 50 25
3 MajuraFC18 9 6 2 1 31 14 17 20 2 Belconnen United FC 4 9 7 0 2 63 15 48 2]
4 Woden Valley SC 24 9 4 0 5 39 31 8 12 3 Marist Canberra FC 4 9 4 4 1 33 10 23 16
5 Belnorth FC 25 9 4 0 5 20 29 9 12 4 Woden Valley SC 69 6 4 2 0 24 6 18 14
6 Belsouth FC 10 9 21 6 15 29 -14 7 5 Canberra Olympic FC 1 7 3 2 2 15 10 5 1
7 Marist Canberra FC 7 9 1 0 8 11 46 -35 3 6 MajuraFC12 10 3 1 6 35 25 10 10
7  StEdmunds 4 9 3 1 5 21 32 -11 10
8 CoomaSC8 8 2 1 5 14 33 19 7
9 Queanbeyan City FC 3 9 2 0 7 19 62 43 6
10 Woden Valley SC 23 9 11 7 8 77 69 4
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OU16 DIV 2 - ACTEWAGL JUNIOR O U118 DIV 2 - ACTEWAGL JUNIOR
LEAGUE LEAGUE
Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS Pos Team P WDL F A GD PTS
1 Gungahlin United FC 13 9 8 0 1 43 14 29 24 1 Belsouth FC 8 9 9 0 0O 64 6 58 27
Majura FC 15 9 8 0 1 45 18 27 24 2 Belnorth FC 26 9 5 1 3 26 30 4 16
3 Monaro Panthers FC 6 9 6 0 3 48 26 22 18 3 Brindabella Blues FC 12 8 3 0 5 23 33 -10 9
4 Weston Molonglo FC 29 8 5 0 3 63 22 41 15 4 Belwest Foxes SC 20 9 306 9 25 -6 9
5 Brindabella Blues FC 16 9 4 0 5 25 31 6 12 5 YassFC5 9 21 6 12 36 24 7
6 MajuraFC13 8 3 1 4 37 43 -6 10 6 MajuraFC9 9 2 0 7 1 38 -27 6
7 Radford College 3 7 3 1 3 19 28 9 10 7 Marist Canberra FC 3 8 1 25 9 29 20 5
8 Gungahlin United FC 14 5 302 14 12 2 9
]% Q"ajufc F6C14 2 3 g Z i lz 235 2 O U118 DIV 3 - ACTEWAGL JUNIOR
ass -
11 Belwest Foxes SC 19 9 1 0 8 18 51 -33 3 LEAGUE
12 Marist Canberra FC 5 9 0 0 9 7 94 87 O Pos Team F A GD PTS

1 Radford College 2

OU18 DIV 1- ACTEWAGL JUNIORLEAGUE > MauafC1o

39 14 25 18

O N 0 NN o o
O N W WU S
OO OO0 — w -
O oA WO -

o

)

N

N

3 Gungahlin United FC 12 = 9

Resglea PPWDLUFATGD PIS  , \yeston Molonglo FC 30 n 28 47 6

1 quen Valley SC 17 8 8 0 0 61 11 50 24 5 Woden Valley SC 18 16 51 35 6

2 Marist Canberra FC 1 8 7 0 1 39 9 30 21 6 Burgmann Anglican School 3 4 44 40 O
3 Gungahlin United FC 10 8 4 1 3 30 18 12 13
4 Marist Canberra FC 2 8 4 0 4 14 20 -6 12
5 Gungahlin United FC 11 7 2 0 5 26 22 4 6
6 Belsouth FC9 g8 1.1 6 11 79 68 4
7 Radford College 1 8 0 2 6 15 33 -18 2
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1ST - NPL CF WOMEN'S U17 - NPL CF WOMEN’S

Pos Team P WDUL F A GD PTS Pos Team P W DL F A GD PTS
1 Canberra Croatia FC 8 8 0 0O 3l 8 23 24 1 Belconnen United FC 8 7 1 0 o7 5 62 22
2 Belconnen United FC 8 5 1 2 36 5 31 16 2 Canberra United Academy 8 7 1 0O 49 5 44 22
3 Gungahlin United FC 8 5 1 2 16 8 8 16 3 Wagga City Wanderers FC 8 6 0 2 25 11 14 18
4 Canberra Olympic FC 8 5 0 3 36 15 21 15 4 Woden Weston FC 8 5 0 3 30 19 11 15
5 Canberra United Academy 8 4 1 3 2] 15 6 13 5 Gungahlin United FC 8 3 1 4 12 17 5 10
6 Woden Weston FC 8 2 2 4 7 20 -3 8 6 Canberra Croatia FC 8 3 0 5 16 21 -5 9
7 Wagga City Wanderers FC 8 2 0 6 16 25 9 6 7 Tuggeranong United FC 8 2 0 6 1 34  -23 6
8 Tuggeranong United FC g8 1 2 5 5 25 20 5 8 Canberra Olympic FC 8 0 2 6 4 4] -37 2
9  Monaro Panthers FC 8 0 1 7 4 51 47 1 9 Monaro Panthers FC 8 0 1 7 2 63 -61 1

RES - NPL CF WOMEN'S U15 - NPL CF WOMEN'S

Pos Team P W DL F A GD PTS Pos Team P WD L F A GD PTS
1 Belconnen United FC 8 6 2 0O 48 4 44 20 1 Belconnen United FC 8 7 0O 1 42 6 36 21
2 Canberra United Academy 8 5 1 2 28 8 20 16 2 Woden Weston FC 8 7 0O 1 30 4 26 21
3 Woden Weston FC 8 4 4 0 26 9 17 16 3 Wagga City Wanderers FC 8 6 1 1 22 5 17 19
4 Canberra Olympic FC 8 5 1 2 30 21 9 16 4 Canberra Olympic FC 8 4 0 4 13 25 12 12
5 Canberra Croatia FC 8 4 2 2 23 15 8 14 5 Canberra Croatia FC 8 3 1 4 20 17 3 10
6  Wagga City Wanderers FC 8 2 1 5 9 33 24 7 6 Gungahlin United FC 8 3 1 4 1 8 3 10
7 Gungahlin United FC 8 2 0 6 1 24 -13 6 7 Tuggeranong United FC 8 3 1 4 13 21 -8 10
8  Monaro Panthers FC 8 0 3 5 9 34 -25 3 8 Monaro Panthers FC 8 1 0 7 7 38 31 3
9 Tuggeranong United FC 8 1 0 7 5 4 36 3 9 Canberra United Academy 8 0 0 8 3 37 34 O
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U13 - NPL CF WOMEN’S U23 - NPL CF MEN'S

Pos Team P W DL F A GD PTS Pos Team P WDUL F A GD PTS
1 Canberra Olympic FC 8 7 1 0O 66 1 65 22 1 Canberra Olympic FC 7 5 0 2 13 8 5 15
2 Wagga City Wanderers FC 8 7 0O 1 38 11 27 21 2 Belconnen United FC 7 4 2 1 19 8 1M 14
3 Belconnen United FC 8 6 1 1 48 4 44 19 3 Monaro Panthers FC 7 4 1 2 2 12 9 13
4 Gungahlin United FC 8 3 2 3 15 26 - 11 4 Canberra Croatia FC 7 4 0 3 21 17 4 12
5 Canberra Croatia FC 8 3 1 4 11 30 -19 10 5 Gungahlin United FC 7 3 1 3 13 11 2 10
6 Woden Weston FC 8 3 1 4 7 27 20 10 6 Woden Weston FC 7 2 3 2 14 12 2 9
7 Canberra United Academy 8 1 3 4 10 18 -8 6 7 Tuggeranong United FC 7 2 0 5 1 18 -/ 6
8 Tuggeranong United FC 8 1 1 6 7 34 -27 4 8 TigersFC 7 0 1 6 2 25 23 1
9 Monaro Panthers FC 8 0 0 8 7 58 -5l 0

1ST - NPL2 CF MEN'S
4
.IST - “PL CF ME“ s Pos Team P WD L F A GD PTS

Pos Team P W DL F A GD PTS 1 Yoogali SC 8 7 0 1 30 9 21 21
1 Canberra Croatia FC 7 5 2 0 17 9 8 17 2 Queanbeyan City FC 8 6 0 2 18 11 7 18
2 Gungahlin United FC 7 4 2 1 17 4 13 14 3 Wagga City Wanderers FC 8 4 2 2 23 13 10 14
3 Belconnen United FC 7 4 1 2 12 7 5 13 4 Canberra White Eagles FC 8 4 2 2 19 12 7 14
4 Tigers FC 7 3 0 4 12 10 2 9 5 ANUFC 8 4 0 4 16 12 4 12
5 Tuggeranong United FC 7 2 3 2 7 12 =5 9 6 O'Connor Knights SC 8 3 1 4 20 19 1 10
6 Canberra Olympic FC 7 2 0 5 12 16 -4 6 7 Weston Molonglo FC 8 2 2 4 8 14 -6 8
7 Woden Weston FC 7 2 0 5 5 16 -11 6 8 Brindabella Blues FC 8 2 1 5 1 22 -7
8 Monaro Panthers FC 7 1 2 4 7 12 -5 5 9 Narrabundah FC 8 0 0 8 4 37 33 O
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U23 - NPL2 CF MEN’S U16 - NPL CF YOUTH
Pos Team P W DL F A GD PTS Pos Team P W D L F A GD PTS
1 ANUFC 8 8 0 0 3l 7 24 24 1 Canberra Croatia FC 1m 10 1 0 33 6 27 31
2 Weston Molonglo FC 8 5 1 2 36 7 29 16 O Gungahlin United FC m 8 1 2 36 17 19 25
3 Wagga City Wanderers FC 8 5 1 2 34 10 24 16 3 Belconnen United FC nm 7 2 2 30 8 22 23
4 Canberra White Eagles FC 8 4 1 3 15 11 4 13 4 Woden Weston FC 12 6 1 5 16 22 -6 19
5 Brindabella Blues FC 8 4 1 3 21 20 1 13 5 Wagga City Wanderers FC m 6 0 5 22 18 4 18
6 O'Connor Knights SC 8 3 1 4 25 23 2 10 6 Griffith FC m 5 2 4 24 20 4 17
7 Yoogali SC 8 3 1 4 15 17 -2 10 7 Brindabella Blues FC n 4 2 5 22 16 6 14
8 Narrabundah FC 8 1 0 7 8 40 32 3 8 Woden Valley SC 10 4 2 4 18 24 -6 14
9 Queanbeyan City FC 8 0 0 8 1 61 -50 0 9 Radford College nm 4 1 6 17 2] -4 13
10 Canberra Olympic FC m 4 0 7 22 22 0 12
11 Tigers FC m 3 1 7 23 32 -9 10
ulla - “PL CF YOUTH 12 Monaro Panthers FC n 2 1 8 12 35 -23 7
Pos Team P W D L F A GD PTS 13 Tuggeranong United FC 12 1 2 9 6 37 -3l 5
1 Canberra Olympic FC 9 8 1 0 48 9 39 25
2 Brindabella Blues FC 9 7 1 1 23 16 7 22
3 Gungahlin United FC 9 6 2 1 24 11 13 20
4 Belconnen United FC 0 6 1 3 40 15 25 19
5 Wagga City Wanderers FC 10 6 1 3 30 14 16 19
6 Canberra Croatia FC 9 4 1 4 24 19 5 13
7 Monaro Panthers FC 0 3 2 5 14 23 9 11
8 Tuggeranong United FC 10 2 2 6 16 26 -10 8
9 Radford College 9 2 1 6 12 43 -31 7
10 Woden Weston FC 0% 1 0 9 15 37 22 3
11 Woden Valley SC 9 1 O 8 11 38 -27 3



CAPITAL
= FOOTBALL

U14 - NPL CF YOUTH U13 - NPL CF YOUTH

Pos Team P W D L F A GD PTS Pos Team P W D L F A GD PTS
1 Belconnen United FC 12 10 0 2 61 19 42 30 1 Canberra Croatia FC 1m 10 1 0 50 5 45 3]
2 Radford College m 9 1 1 54 6 48 28 2 Belconnen United FC 12 8 1 3 42 17 25 25
3 Canberra Croatia FC 1m 9 0 2 44 7 37 27 3 Wagga City Wanderers FC m 7 2 2 49 19 30 23
4 Gungahlin United FC 1m 8 1 2 63 15 48 25 4 Gungahlin United FC m 6 3 2 50 13 37 21
5 Griffith FC nm 7 3 1 42 17 25 24 5 Griffith FC m 6 1 4 27 9 18 19
6 Canberra Olympic FC 1m 5 2 4 33 28 5 17 6 Canberra Olympic FC 1m 6 1 4 34 22 12 19
7 Woden Weston FC 12 5 1 6 25 3] 6 16 7 Radford College 0 6 1 3 24 17 7 19
8 Tuggeranong United FC 12 4 1 7 21 30 9 13 8 Woden Weston FC 1m 5 1 5 24 20 4 16
9 Monaro Panthers FC n 3 1 7 20 27 -7 10 9 Woden Valley SC 10 3 2 5 21 26 -5 11
10 Woden Valley SC 0 3 1 6 13 38 -25 10 10 Brindabella Blues FC nm 3 1 7 33 25 8 10
11 Brindabella Blues FC m 2 1 8 17 30 -13 7 11 Monaro Panthers FC m o 4 7 11 35 24 4
12 Wagga City Wanderers FC m 2 0 9 16 41 25 6 12 Tuggeranong United FC 1m 0 1 10 10 94 -84 1
13 Tigers FC 12 0 0 12 3 120 -117 O
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TABLE OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

Capital Football ended the 2020 financial year with an operating deficit of -$206K
and a net asset position of $3.54M.

This outcome was influenced by;
» The Covid-19 Pandemic that saw football suspended from March to June 2020,
resulting in;
» 19% decrease in winter football registrations.
» No delivery of the Kanga Cup.
» No delivery of National competitions including the National Youth

Championships, National Training Centre Challenge, and Foxtel National
Youth League.

» Reduced delivery of referee and coach education courses.

» Delivery by Capital Football of a “half” winter season from the time football
activities could resume (July 2020) through to the end of the winter season access
to fields (September 2020).

» Decision by Capital Football to provide a 50% refund of registration fees to winter
football players in 2020, aligned to the half season competition delivery.

Decision by FFA to reduce Member Federation Funding.

Capital Football staff being placed on reduced hours during the temporary
suspension of football.

» Receipt of $484K in Covid-19 stimulus from Government, including, $384K
Jobkeeper subsidy, $100K ATO cash flow boost and $36K ACT Government
sports sector support.

Capital Football acknowledges the substantial support provided by the Federal and
ACT Governments in response to the Covid-29 pandemic. This support included
cash grants, the Jobkeeper initiative that enabled us to retain our workforce, and
the waiving of sports ground hire fees. Without this support, football would not
have been resourced to remain active and engaged during 2020, nor capable of
resuming football activities once it was safe to do so.

Capital Football would like to acknowledge the contribution of the members of our
Finance, Audit and Risk Management Committee (FARM), Fran Sankey, Justin Webb,
Dion Cannell and Attilio Martiniello.

Program Area

Governance
Administration

Commercial

Hawker Football Centre
Facilities

Digital Engagement
Corporate Partnerships and Events
Performance

ACT Teams — Football
ACT Teams — Futsal
CUA and TSP

Player Programs

Coach Programs
Participation

NPL-Men
NPL-Women

Senior Leagues

Junior Leagues

Futsal

Referees

Inclusion Programs
School Programs
Kanga Cup

2020 Kanga Cup
Canberra United
Westfield W-League
National Youth Leagues
National Futsal Championships
2020 NFC

Covid Stimulus

Job Keeper

Other ACT and Federal support
Total

Budget 2020
surplus/(deficit)

($325,976)

($57,815)
$55,408
($180,341)
$156,511

($22,279)
($13,945)
($78,323)
$9,118

($83,843)

($88,541)
($19,325)
$432,941
$408,322
$95,574
($169,170)
$24,426
($55,541)

$141,918

($47,986)
($59,276)

($18,104)

$0
$0
$103,353

CAPITAL

ooy FOOTBALL

Actual 2020

Variance

surplus/(deficit) (+/-to budget)

($203,434)

($115,416)
$67,786
($180,392)
$37,452

($33,547)
($13,672)
($161,251)
($63,075)
($69,215)

($116,470)
($21,907)
$221,855
$144,648
$155,562
($156,136)
($4,885)
($59,682)

($34,277)

($53,945)
($24,473)

($5,746)

$348,000
$136,400
($205,818)

+$122,542

-$57,601
+$12,378
-$51
-$119,059

-$10,868
+$273
-$82,928
-$72,193
$14,628

-$27927
-$2,582
-$211,086
-$263,674
+$59,988
+$13,034
-$29,311
-$4,141

-$176,195

-$5,959
+$34,803

+$12,358

$348,000
$136,400
-$309,171



ACT FODTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED

ABN 16 413 452 268

FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2020

ACT FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED
(A COMPAMNY LIMITED BY GLARANTEE)
ABM 15 413 453 268

DIRECTORS REPORT

Your Board of Directors present this report on the ACT Football Federation Limited (the Federation)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020,

Directors

The names of each person who had been a director during the year or at the date of this report are:

Fram Sankey- Chair Angelo Konstantinou- Deputy Chair

Richard Naumowski Grace Gill

Gary Vandeburgt Justin Webb (appointment commenced 2020 AGM).
Jodie Newall Garth Morrison (appointment completed 2020 AGM).

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless
otherwise stated.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Federation during the financial year included administering and
developing the code of football.

Operating Results

The deficit of the Federation for the yvear amounted to $205,819 (2019 surplus: 5189,986).

Review of Operations

A review of operations of the Federation during the financial year indicated that there had been
changes to operations during the financial year due to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Im March 2020 Football Australia temporarily suspended all football activities in response to COVID-19,
Concurrently, Australian Governments issued public health orders limiting physical interaction, These
things combined resulted in a reduced winter football season. Football Australia also reviewed its
funding of Member Federations, which was histerically a part return of the National Registration fee
to suppart delivery of programs to promote and develop football, These factors combined in a
significant reduction in revenue for Capital Feotball. In respense, Capital Football staff were placed
on reduced hours from April to June 2020, returning to full time hours when the football season
recommenced in July 2020,

Government stimulus initiatives supported Capital Football's operation in 2020, notably the JobKeeper
program.

Significant Changes in State of Affairs

Mo significant changes in the Federation's state of affairs during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS REFORT
After Balance Date Events

Mo matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected
or may significantly affect the operations of the Federation, the results of those operations, or the
state of affairs of the Federation in future financial years.

Future Developments

The Federation expects to maintain the present status and level of operations and hence there are no
likeby future developments in the entity’s operations.

Infarmation en Directors

Fran Sankey Board Mermber (elected 9/4/2018 to AGM 2021)

Qualifications: Executive Master of Public Administration; Diploma of Praject
Management

Experience: Chair of the Board of Capital Football - elected Chair April 2019
March 2013 to May 2020, Chair of the Finance, Audit and Risk
Management Committee;
2013-2017, Deputy Chair of the Board of Capital Feotball
Movermnber 2018 to November 2020, Member, FFA Women's Football
Council, elected November 2018
2008 to 2013: Women's Chalr, Weston Creek Soccer Club;
2008 to 2013: Chair, Women's Standing Advisory Committee, Capital
Feotball; 2008; 2004 to 2006: Board Member, Women's Soccer
Canberra Board; 2002 to 2003: Sports Convenor, Soccer, Sth
Australian Masters Games

Jodie Newall Board Member (appointed 5/8/2019 to AGM 2021)
Qualifications: Bachelor of Commerce (Corporate Sustainability), Bachelor of
Laws, Admitted to practice as a solicitor of the ACT Supreme
Court
Experience: Current: Legal Advisor = Australian Trade and Investment
Commission, Previous: Solicitor — Mills Dakley
Australian equestrian representative
Member of various high-performance programs = ACTAS,
NSWIS, Equestrian Australia
MCAS equestrian coach and NOAS dressage judge
Long-term contributions across various community
organisations
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Richard Naumowski
Qualifications:
Experience:

Grace Gill

Experience:

Angelo Konstantinou

Experience:

Justin Webb
Qualifications:

Experience:

ACT FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARAMNTEE)

ABN 16413 452 268

DIRECTORS REPORT

Board Member (elected 8/4/2018 to AGM 2021)
Associate Diploma Accounting

FFA Referee [1999-currrent); Capital Football Referee
Standing and Advisory Committee Chair (2012-2015);
Capital Football Referee Administrator 2010;

Coach Gungahlin United (2017-Current)

Board Member (elected 8/04/2019 to AGM 2022)

2020: Brass Meck Broadcast Commentary Training and Opportunities
Program

2019: Australian Institute of Company Directors and Professional
Feotballers Australian, Women in Leadership Governance Training
2019: Australian Institute of Company Directors and ACT Office for
Women, Audrey Fagan Board Directorship short course

2019 Women's Working Group Chair

2008-2015: Canberra United player

2008: Matildas player 2008

2006-2007: Young Matildas player

Board Member (elected 20/5/2020 to AGM in 2023)
[Deputy Chair)

Self Employed Company Director (20 years)

Chief Technology Officer (Viva Leisure / Club Lime Group)
Hellenic Club Board Member since October 2017
Canberra Olympic Committee to 2016

Board member of ACT Futsal Incorporated to 2004

Board Member (elected 20/5/2020 to AGM in 2023)

Member of the Institute of Company Directors of Australia,
Certified Investment Management Analyst,

Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia &
MNew Zealand

Bachelor of Economics

Bachelor of Commerce

May 2020 to present, Chair of the Finance Audit and Risk
Management Committee

Director of a global infrastructure manager

Ower 20 years' experience in understanding, analysing, and preparing
financial statements

Current member of three investment committees overseeing over
ASE billion of funds under management

Former player in ACT premier league and premier futsal league.



Gary Vandeburgt
Qualifications:
Experience:

Garth Maorrison
Qualifications:

Experience:

Meetings of Directors

ACT FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
ABN 16413 457 268

DIRECTORS REPORT

Board Member [elected 8/4/2019 to AGM 2022)

Bachelor Applied Science (Sports Media)

FF& Referee (1995-currrent); Soccer Canberra Men's League
Manager (2002-05), 15 years Sports Administration experience

Board Member (elected 8/5/2017 to AGM 2020)

Master of Business Administration (Sports Management)
Graduate Australian Institute of Company Directors (GAICD);
Fellow Australian Institute of Management [FAIM)

Masters of Project Management - Expected completion 2021
Managing Director GrayMorr Hospitality (Since March 2018).

During the financial year, 10 regular meetings of directors were held, Due to COVID-19, these were
held by a combination of face to face and videoconference meetings. Attendance by each director

was as follows:

Directors’ Meetings
Number of meetings Mumber of meetings
eligible to attend attended

Directors —
Fran Sankey 10 9
Angelo Konstantinow 10 10
Richard Maumowski 10 10
Grace Gil 10 10
Gary Vandeburgt 10 10
Justin Webkb 7 7
Jodie Newall 10 10
Garth Maorrison 3 3
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DHRECTORS REPORT

I additer o repular direclors’ mectings, ad-hoc restings were held durng tEe tenvporary
suspensan of fecthall oo discuss the mmodet of COVIO-13. Attendance by pach disector was as tollowes:

. DHrectors' Mectings
| Rumber of reectings Mumber of meotings
gligible to atten atleraiod

Difuv!:tEnr_s - T '

Fran Sankey g ; 3 T

Anpala Kanstanting. i 9 | ] a )

gkl Mo rmeski | 5 R

Graee G . 5 g -
; Gary Wandeiurg: f' ! 3

fustin webh 2 2 '
_-Ir:-riip N-e"'l.'.'.‘:ll:.__ B b ]
CGarth Marrison T ) 7

Indemmnitying DEFicers or Audivnr

Lafarpal Léa 12 wxtent perrmtled by law, noindemnities have baon given ar inswearcn geen s pail,
uringtor ar oo the nad of the firaecial e, for oy person wio is ar has bean an officer ar acditor of
thie Federaticn.

Froceedines on Behalf of the Federatlon

Ha porson has epplicd for leave of o Courl to leing sreceed rps on BErhalf af the Fedorarian gr
interuvrag inany prafesdings wowhkin th Fede2dlmn s s parky for the purpose of taking responsib:lity
on biehelf af the Faderstion tos & ar any of those pracoedings.

The Federationwas nos a panby bo ay soch grocecdresgs daogg Lhe pear.

Auditers Independente Declaration

The lead auditer's indensrdonca declaratian fa: tho yoare cnged (L] Dece mngr P00 R0t hodn reodiabe
ard can ke owrd on oape 8 of the Findancial Report.

Signed inaccordance with 2 rasolut onoo¥ the Board af Creclors:

Dated thiz ALth da-,_"-:_i? March 3031,
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ACT FOOTBALL FEDER ATIGN LIMITED (A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
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ARN 16 413 452 268 STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
BIRECTORS DECLARATION 31 DECEMBER 2020
The directars of toe Federation declare that: NOTE EU;_O 20519
L The financia statoments and robes, £5 581000 00 pages 9 to 25 are [n azcordanse wth the
Corparalians Act 2507 ard: Revenue
Registration 1,726,869 2,957 471
fal vomply with Avstralians Accocnting Standards; znd Grants 567,220 947,729
ikl gmees a zrue wnd Vair vicw of the hrancial position as at 33 Decem o 2020 gl of the Operations 133,187 267 058
perfermance for the yrar erced on that date of the Foderat:on, Corporate 410,109 793,523
Resources received free of charge 42,057 42,057
2. I che gioctors” iz thero are roasanable graynds to belieye that the Mederation will be Government stimulus funding 448 000 -
able 1 pay s debts as end when thoy becore due and payable
. . Total revenue 3,327,442 5,007 838
Fhis dociaration 1 made in sceordarce with a resplution of the Board of Directors as requared by
sada ol the Curporotions Aot 2007,
Expenses
Registration 2 404,927 613,974
Operations 3 501,105 908,053
Corporate 4 172,708 429 247
Accounts, finance & legal 5 12,277 (46,348)
Administration & 203,489 199,012
Depreciation 84,058 91,050
Logistics 7 129,456 307,799
Staff & contractors a 2,024,540 2,314,551
Miscellaneous 701 514
Total expenses 3,533,261 4,817 852
surplus//(deficit) for the year (205,819) 189,986

Other comprehensive income

Change in asset revaluation surplus

Total comprehensive surplus/{deficit) for the year (205,819) 189,986




ACT FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED ALCT FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED

[A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE) (A COMPANY LIMITED BY GLUARANTEE]
ABN 16 413 452 268 ABN 16 413 452 168
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
31 DECEMBER 2020
MNOTE 2020 019
- 5
NOTE 2020 2019
ASSETS
£ 5
Revenue CURRENT ASSETS
Registrati 1.726.859 2857 471 Cash and cash equivalents 9 2,805,400 2,921,668
=glatraticn i bl Trade and ather receivables 10 192,995 679,397
Grants 567,220 947,729 Inventories 20 540 24,345
Operations 133,187 267,058 Other current assets 11 20,307 656,001
Corporate 410,109 793,523
Resources received free of charge 42,057 42,057 TOTAL CLURRENT ASSETS 3.099.243 3,701,411
Government stimulus funding 448,000 - o !
NOM-CURRENT ASSETS
Total revenue 3,327,442 5,007,838 Property, plant and equipment 12 1,250,342 1,308,043
Right of use assets 13 19,655 30,322
Expenses
Registration 2 4045927 612,974 TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,270,597 1,338,371
Operations 3 501,105 908,053
Corporile 4 172,708 429,247 TOTAL ASSETS 4,309,839 5,039,782
Accounts, finance & legal 5 12,237 (46,348)
Administration B 203,489 199,012 LIABILITIES
Depreciation 84,058 51,050
Logistics 7 129,456 307,793 CURRENT LIABILITIES
Staff & contractors 8 2,024,540 2,314,551 Trade and other payables 14 32,824 548,993
Miscellaneous 701 514 Lease liabilities 12,268 31,194
Other liabilities — unearned income 397,131 57E,658
Total expenses 3,533,261 4,817,852 Prowision for employee benefits 15 B, 229 85,914
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 716,452 1,244,759
Surplus/{deficit) for the year {205,819) 135,986
NON-CURRENT LIABITIES
Other comprehensive income Prowvision for employee benefits 15 49,980 a5,7a97
Cha nge in asset revaluation 5u[p|u5 = = TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 49,980 45,797
Total comprehensive surplus/(deficit) for the year {2005,819) 189,986 TOTAL LIABILITIES Te6432 1,290,356
NET ASSETS 3,543 407 3,749,226
EQLITY
Retained earnings 3,422,913 3,628,732
Asset revaluation reserve 120,484 120,454
TOTAL EQLNTY 3,543 407 3,749,226

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements ) o
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements



ALCT FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

ABN LG 413 452 268

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2020

Balance at 1 January 2019

Total comprehensive surphss for the
period

Balance at 31 December 2019
Tatal comprehensive deficit for the period

Balance at 31 December 2020

Retained Asset Total
Earmings Rewvaluation
Resarve
] & ]

343E 746 120,494 3,559,240

180,986 189,985
3,628,732 120,494 3,749,225
{205,819 [205,819)
3,422,913 120,454 3,543,407

The accompanying notes form part of these fmancial statements
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ACT FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

ABN 16413 452 268

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBEER 2020

NOTE

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts in the course of eperations
Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest received
Other income

Met cath generated by/(used in) operating 16
activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVATIES

Proceeds from sale of non-current assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Met cath generated by/(used in) investing
activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCNG ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liabilities

Met cash generated by/jused in} investing
activities

Net increase/{decrease) in cash held

Cash at beginning of the financial year

Cash at end of the financial year 9

020 2019
1 s

3,752,732 4,510,515
(4,167,533 1%,149,569)
32,636 46,854
292,057 869,357
(o0, LOS) 277,157
. 8,507
[16,284) 14,7600
[16,284) 6,253)
[9,876) {9,876)
(9,876) (9,876)
[116,268) 261,028
2,921,668 2,660,640
2,805,400 2,921,658

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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ACT FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE])
ABN 16 413 452 268
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

MOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial report is for ACT Football Federation Limited as an individual entity, incorporated
and domiciled in the Australian Capital Territory. The Federation is a company limited by
guarantee,

Basis of Preparation

The financial report is a general-purpose financial report that has been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards-Reduced Disclosure Requirements,
Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001.

Australian Accounting Standards-Reduced Disclosure Reguirements set out accounting
palicies that the AASE has concluded would result in a financial report containing relevant and
reliable information about transactions, events and conditions to which they apply.
Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards-Reduced Disclosure Requirements ensures
that the financial statements and notes also comply with Internaticnal Financial Reporting
Standards. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this financial report are
presented below. They have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs,
maodified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets,
financial assets and financial liabilities.

Accounting Policies

(a) Rewenue

Revenue recognised under AASE 15 is measured at the amount which the Federation expects
to receive in consideration for satisfying performance ocbligations to a customer. A
performance obligation is the distinct good or service defined within the contract with a
customer. The transaction price is allocated to one or more performance obligations
contained within the contract, with revenue being recognised as or when the performance
obligation is satisfied.

While the Federation acknowledges the contributions made by volunteers in its continued
operations, the difficulty and significant cost asscciated with trying to reliably measure these
contributions means that the Federation has elected not to record these amounts in its
financial statements.

Tirming of Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the entity satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

ACT FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GLIARANTEE)
ABM 16 413 452 268

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

[a) Revenue |[Continued)

If the entity satisfies a performance obligation before it receives the consideration, the entity
recognises either a contract asset or a receivable in its statement of fimnancial position,
depending on whether something other than the passage of time s required before the
consideration is due,

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax [GST).
(b} Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

[e) Inventories

Inventories consist of football equipment and promotional materials which are measured at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(d

Property, Plant and Equipment

Each class of plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair values as indicated, less, where
applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impalrment losses.

Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment are measured on the cest basis less depreciation and impairment losses.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by the directors to ensure
it is not in excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recowverable amount is
assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows that will be received from the assets
employment and subsequent disposal, The expected net cash flows have been discounted to
present values in determining recoverable amounts.

Flant and equipment that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost are valued at
the fair value of the asset at the date it is acquired.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings and capitalised lease assets is
depreciated on a declining-balance method basis over the asset's useful life to the entity
commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are
depreciated over either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the
improvements, whichever best reflects the expected utilisation of the asset,
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ACT FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
ABN 16413 452 268
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e

if]

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate
Buildings 1.0%

Hawker Oval Redevelopment 2.5-14.3%
Equipment and fittings 20.0% - 33.0%
Muotor vehicles 0%,

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date,

Agset classes carnying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’'s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the Federation reviews the carrying values of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. I such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value, Any excess of the
asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the Income Statement,

Where future economic benefits of the asset are not primarily dependent upon the asset’s
ability to generate net cash inflows and when the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace
its remaining future economic benefits, value in use is depreciated replacement cost of an
asset.

‘Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset class, the Federation
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating wnit to which the class of asset
belongs.

Employee Benefits

Provision is made for the Federation’s liability for employee benefits arising from services
rendered by employees to the reporting date. Employee benefits expected to be settled
within one year together with benefits arising from wages, salaries and annual leave which
may be settled after one year, have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the lability is settled. Other employee benefits payable later than one year have been
measured at the net present value.

Contributions are made by the Federation to an employee’s superannuation fund and are
charged as expenses when incurred.

ACT FOOTEALL FEDERATION LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
ABN 16 413 452 268
WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g}

(h

(i

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Federation has a legal or constructive obligation, as a
result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result
and that outflow can be reliably measured.

Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the
obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying
amount. These gains or losses are included in the income statement. When revalued assets
are sald, amounts incleded in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to
retained earnings,

Leases

Leases of fived assets, where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership
of the asset, but not the legal ownership, are transferred to the entity are classified as finance
leases,

Finance leases are capitalised, recording an asset and a liability equal to the present value of
the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values.

Leased assets are depreciated on a diminishing-balance basis over their estimated useful
lives where it is likely that the entity will obtain cwnership of the asset. Lease payments are
allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the
period,

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date
that the Federation commits itself to either purchase or sell the asset (ie. trade date
accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transactions costs except where
the instrument is classified “at fair value through profit or loss” in which case transaction costs
are expensed to profit or loss immediately,

Classification and subseguent measurément

Finance instruments are subsequently measured at either fair value, amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method or cost. Fair volue represents the amount for which an asset
could be exchanged or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties. Where
available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value, In other
circumstances, valuation technigues are adopted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Amaortised cost is calculated as:

i. the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial
recognition;

ii. less principal repayments;

ili. plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount
initially recognised and the maturity amount calculated using the effective interest
methed; and

iv. less any reduction for impairment,

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period and is equivalent to the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term ) of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
Revisions to expected future met cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying
value with a consequential recognition of an income or expense in profit or loss.

[i) Fimanciol ossets of fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified at ‘fair value through profit or loss® when they are held for
trading for the purpose of short-term profit taking, or where they are derivatives not held for
hedging purposes, or when they are designated as such 1o avoid an accounting mismatch or
to enable perfermance evaluation where a group of financial assets is managed by key
management perscnnel on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value
with changes in carrying value being included in profit or loss,

(i) Loons ond receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

(iii) Held-to-maturty investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed maturities
and fixed or determinable payments, and it is the entity’s intention to hold these investments
to maturity.

[iw) Availahble-for-sole financiol ossets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either not
capable of being cassified into other categories of financial assets due to their nature, or they
are designated as such by management. They comprise investments in the equity of other
entities where there is neither a fixed maturity nor fixed or determinable payments.

ACT FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
ABN 16413 452 268
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

MOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(v] Finonciol Fabilities

Mon-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost,

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expires
or the asset is transferred to another party whereby the entity no longer has any significant
continuing invalvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset. Financial liabilities
are derecognised where the related obligations are either discharged, cancelled or expired,
The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability, which is extinguished or
transferred to another party and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of
noncash assets or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(i} Taxation

No provision for income tax has been raised as the Federation is exempt from income tax
under Section 50,45 of the Income Tox Assessment Act 1997,

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the
amount of G5T incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these
circumstances the G5T is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of
an itern of expense,

Receivables and payables in the Statement of financial position are shown inclusive of G5T,
Cash flows are presented in the Statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the G5T
component of investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

(i} Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
with changes in presentation for the current financial year.

(k) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated in to the financial report based
on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a
reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data,
obtained both externally and within the company.

Key estimates — Impairment

The Federation assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific
to the Federation that may lead to impairment of assets. Where an impairment trigger exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Fair value less costs to sell or current
replacement cost calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate a
number of key estimates,



ACT FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GLUARANTEE) AET FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED
ABN 16 413 452 268 (A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ABN 16 413 452 268
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
NOTE 2020 2019
5 5 NOTE 2020 2019
NOTE 2. REGISTRATION EXPENSES 4 g
MOTE 6. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
National registration fee 264,717 305,552
Insurances 105,663 161,356 IT & communications 74,550 49,951
Tournaments 17,503 91,542 Praperty & occupation 90,725 94,791
Other registration expenses 17,044 55,524 Printing & stationery 14,841 28,563
Taotal 404,927 613,974 Repairs & maintenance 9,737 7135
Insurance 1.637 10,387
Other administration expenses 5,999 8171
NOTE 3. OPERATIONS EXPENSES Total 203 489 199,012
Referee match fees 179,631 336,495
Equipment 54,089 66,670 NOTE 7. LOGISTICS EXPENSES
Medical 72,333 108,927
Ground hire 130,297 301,905 Accommodation & travel 103,708 241,730
Other operations expenses B4, 755 94,056 Other logistics expenses 25,744 66,069
Total 501,105 08,053 Taotal 129,456 307,799
NOTE4. CORPORATE EXPENSES NOTE 8. STAFF & CONTRACTOR EXPENSES
B . Wages 1,425,276 1,486,460
Membe.rshlp's & merchandise o 6,335 78,696 Superannustion 157,069 164,068
Marketing & corporate communications 112,817 190,527 Other employee costs 27,638 47,260
Events 14,284 79,547 Contractors 292,177 469,644
::I:?rr::rpnrate expenses 39;?;5] ?:J:ig Workforce 122,390 147,119
Total 172,708 479,247 Total 2,024,540 2,314,551
NOTES. ACCOUNTS, FINANCE B LEGAL EXPENSES NOTE 9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Accounting & audit 7,000 7,684 Cash at bank 989 260 1,138,013
Bad & doubtful debts (1s4) (73,716) Term deposits 1,615,540 1,783,655
Legal 2,567 14,290 3 805 400 2 921 668
Other expenses 2,864 5,394 — —
Tatal 12,277 (46,348}
NOTE 10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables 194,365 BET 398
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (1.370) {8,001}

192,995 679,307
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
2020 2019 2020 2019
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NOTE 11. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS NOTE 13. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
Frepayrrents 8,193 49,519 Equipm ent ulnde:l !:ase o 123,33‘833 E:!S;;EEB
Accrued income 12,114 16,482 ess accumulated depreciation (19.233) £,666)
20,307 66,001 19,655 30,322
NOTE 12. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT NOTE 14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
PROPERTY Trade creditors 95,010 311,935
Property — at valuation 300,000 200,000 Acorued expenses 53,048 114,333
Less accumnulated depreciation (5, 000) {3,000] Employee related payables 52,691 67,113
Total Property 294,000 297,000 Borrowings 1767 1,247
Amounts payable to the ATO 30,308 54,365
HAWEKER OVAL REDEVELOPMENT 232,824 548,593
Hawker Oval Redevelopment = at cost 1958 479 1958,479
Less accumulated depreciation (1,048,792] (1,008, 262)
Total Hawker Oval 09, 687 950,217 NOTE 15. PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Analysis of total provision
Flant and Equipment = at cost 185,216 185,216 Annual Long
Less accumulated depreciation [163,557) {148,853) Leave Service
Total Plant and Equipment 21,659 36,363 Leave
Provisions
OFFICE EQUIPMENT Opening balance as at 1/1/2020 85,914 45,797
Office equipment = at cost 154,084 137,801 Net movement in balance (21,685) 4,183
Less accumulated depreciation (123,488) (113,332)
Tatal Office equipment 25,5096 24,469 Balance as at 31/12/2020 64,225 45,980
Currant 64,229 -
TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 1,250,942 1,308,045 Hon-Current - 49,980
64,229 45,980

The full independent valuation of the unit at Football House was undertaken by Phil Green AAP| of
M) Real Estate as at 31 December 2018.

A provision has been recognised for employee benefits relating to long service for employees. In
As at 31 December 2020, the directors scught to have a desktop review of the valuation to ensure calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of
that the amount represents a fair value for the unit at the reporting date. The valuers have indicated long service leave being taken is based on historical data, The measurement and recognition criteria
that there has been no material movement in the valuation as at the reporting date. for employee benefits have been included in Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
5 5
NOTE 16. CASH FLOW RECONCILIATION

Cosh as per:
Statement of financial position 9 2,805,400 2,921,668
Staterment of cash flows 2,805,400 2,921,668
Reconciliation of surplus for the year to net cash
provided by / {used in) operating activities
Surplus/ideficit) for the year (205,819) 189,986
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation 84,058 91,051
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 951 (6,426}
Mowvermrents in assets and Nabilities
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 486,403 (103,988)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 13,805 3,118
Decrease/(increase) in other assets 45,694 (23,274}
Increasef{decrease) in creditors and barrowings {316,171) 97,316
Increase/{decrease) in income in advance (181,526] 15,264
Increase/(decrease) in employee provisions (17,503) 14,110

(90, 108) 277,157

An overdraft facility was available to the Federation at the reporting date secured by a registered

maortgage over the property at Australian Football Federation House Phipps Close Deakin ACT.

NOTE 17. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

Employment
Benefits
5
2020
Total compensation 142,167
2019

Total compensation 146,892

Past
Employment
Benefits
5

13,506

13,801

Total

155,673

160,793

ACT FOOTBALL FEDERATION LIMITED
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
ABN 16 413 452 268
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

NOTE 18. LEASING COMMITMENTS

Leasing commitments for the Federation relate to the lease of the Hawker Football Centre and

lease of office equipment.

The lease of the Hawker Football Centre is a non-cancellable lease with a ten-year term, with rent
payable yearly in advance. The Federation has elected to not measure this right of use asset at
the reporting date as further guidance is expected to be issued subsequently by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board.

The lease of office equipment is a non-cancellable lease with a five-year term, with rent payable
monthly in advance and has been accounted for in accordance is AASBE 16 Leases. The adoption
of the new standard does not have a material impact on the Federation’s financial statements.

NOTE 19. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE DATE

There have been no events subsequent to the reporting date which require disclosure in the
financial report.

NOTE 20. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

There are no contingent liabilities or assets as at 31 December 2020 which require disclosure in

the financial report.

NOTE 21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Mo income was paid or payable, or otherwise made available, to any director of the Federation
from the Federation. Costs incurred by directors in undertaking their roles representing the
entity are paid directly by the Federation and no element relates to the payment of an allowance
or per diem entitlement.
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NOTE 22. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board control the capital of the Federation to ensure that adequate cash flows are generated
to fund operations. The Board is responsible for the overall risk management strategy.

The Federation's capital consists of financial liabilities, supported by financial assets.

The Board effectively manage the Federation's capital by assessing its financial risks and
responding to changes In these risks as well as to changes in the market. These responses may
include the consideration of debt levals.

The Federation does not have a formal policy on capital management and gearing ratios.

MNOTE 23. MEMBERS' GUARANTEE

The Federation is incorporated under the Corparations Act 2001 and is a company limited by
guarantee. If the Federation is wound up, the Constitution states that each member is required
to contribute a maximum of 520 each towards meeting any outstanding obligations of the
company. At 31 December 2020 the number of members was 12,

NOTE 24. COMPANY DETAILS
The registered office for the Federation is:

ACT Football Federation Limited
Unit 2

3 Phipps Close

Deakin ACT 2600

The principal place of business for the Federation is:

ACT Football Federation Limited
Unit 2

3 Phipps Close

Deakin ACT 2600,



Other Information

The directors’ are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in external reports prepared by ACT Football
Federation Limited and made available to members and the public such as the Annual
Report, but does not include the financial report and my auditor's report thereon.

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and
accordingly | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility Is to read the
other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial report or my knowledge obtained in the
awdit or ctherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there s a material
misstaternent of this other information, | am required to report that fact. | have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors’ fior the Financial Report

The directors’ of ACT Football Federation Limited are responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards and the Corporations Act, and for such internal control as the directors”
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free
from material misstate ment, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial report, the directors’ are responsible for assessing ACT
Foatball Federation Limited's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unbess the directors’ either intends to Nguidate ACT Football Federation
Limited or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ are responsible for overseeing ACT Football Federation Limited's
financial reporting process,

x

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

by objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report
as a whaole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that incledes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatemsent when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

| alsa:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion, The risk of not detecting a
rmaterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

=  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the ACT
Football Federation Limited’s internal controls.

# [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by ACT
Football Federation Limited.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of ACT Football Federation Limited” use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
cenditions that may cast significant doubt on ACT Football Federation
Limited's ability to continue as a gaing concermn, If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause ACT Foatball Federation Limited to cease to
continue as a going concern,

# Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
report, inchuding the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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info@capitalfootball.com.au
+61 2 6260 4000

BUSINESS ADDRESS
Football House, Unit 2 / 3 Phipps Close, Deakin, ACT, 2600

MAILING ADDRESS
PO Box 50, Curtin, ACT, 2605
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